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1: ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS
AFS

Annual Financial Statements

AGSA

Auditor-General South Africa

APP

Annual Performance Plan

ATL

Atlantis Campus

CET

Continuing Education & Training

COS

Centre of Specialisation

CTD

Citrusdal Campus

DHET

Department of Higher Education and Training

4IR

Fourth Industrial Revolution

IDZ

Industrial Development Zone

HE

Higher Education

M&E

Monitoring and Evaluation

MLB

Malmesbury

MTEF

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF

Medium Term Strategic Framework

NATED

National Accredited Technical Education Diploma

NC(V)

National Certificate (Vocational)

NDP

National Development Plan

NEET

Not in employment nor in education and training (youth)

NQF

National Qualifications Framework

NSDS

National Skills Development Strategy

NSF

National Skills Fund

NSFAS

National Student Financial Aid Scheme

OHS

Occupational Health and Safety

OPS Plan

Operational Plan

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PQM

Programme Qualification Mix

PSET

Post-School Education and Training

SETA

Sector Education and Training Authority

SEZ

Special Economic Zone

SNE

Special Needs Education

SSP

Sector Skills Plan

SWOT

Strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats

TVET

Technical and Vocational Education and Training

VCET

Vocational and Continuing Education and Training

VRB

Vredenburg Campus

VRD

Vredendal Campus

WBE

Workplace Based Exposure/Experience

WCC

West Coast College

WIL

Work Integrated Learning
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PART A:
GENERAL
OVERVIEW

4

2: MESSAGE FROM THE
COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON

2019 was a year of significant change for West

This programme together with many such ground-

Coast TVET College. The college has come out

breaking programmes for the region will be

of a state of transition and has emerged stronger

expanded upon in the next fiscal year.

and more united with one vision: “To be an
internationally recognized Technical, Vocational,

The college is also proud to be the college of choice

Education

institution

for the Western Cape bronze medal WorldSkills

responsive to the skills development and training

SA Welding Champion that participated in the

needs of the 21st century”. The leadership team

National Championship in Durban in February

has been strengthened by the appointment of the

2019. In line with this, the college also sent one

college Principal and Chief Executive officer, as

of its lecturing staff members to experience the

well as the appointment of the Deputy Principal

WorldSkills International Competition that took

Finance.

place in Russia at the end of 2019. We see this

and

Training

(TVET)

as a development opportunity, and an investment
The expansion of skills and artisan development

in ensuring that our training is internationally

in the region and the country still is the thrust that

comparable.

propels the college and drives the planning and
the resources of the college to contribute to the

The examinations results and the throughput rate

national target of producing 30 000 of artisans by

are increasing year on year, that is attributed to

the year 2030 as per the National Development

the hard work and dedication that the lecturing

Plan.

staff put in to achieve these results. The college is
also seeing an increase in the number of students,

The first cohort of the Centres of Specialisation

which can be attributed to the effective marketing

continues to be the successful symbiosis between

and branding of the West Coast College and the

the college, the student and the company,

promotion of the TVET College sector as the first

exhibiting the colleges continued support of the

choice for education and training in the country.

NDP.
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The disruptive nature and eminent impact of 4IR

as it drives sustainable improvements that enable

is being seen and is expected to hit the college, as

the college to deliver on its mandate.

it does to all institutions of higher learning, in the
near future. The college is taking this into account

In the words of Nelson Mandela, “It seems

in its future planning and keeps on pursuing the

impossible until it is done.” As the college enters

full inclusion of 4IR in the modes of teaching and

a new phase of development and leadership with

learning. In addition, the College is in the process

the new council, I wish to thank the outgoing

of improving its IT infrastructure to support this

council for the sterling work they have done

inevitable change.

for the institution. I am sure there were times it
seemed impossible, but through their dedication

West Coast TVET College’s broad management

and commitment it has been done. We as the new

team is commended for the continuous robust

council are assuring all our stakeholders that we

engagement and planning sessions that are

will continue with the great work and build on the

used as a tool for effective institutional planning,

new future that lies ahead of us.

monitoring and evaluation. These sessions have
also been useful in tracking and ensuring that
all the goals that the institution have set out are
achieved.

__________________________________
Ms B. Mtini
College Council Chairperson

The process of Change Management is continuous
and remains a critical part of the college’s agenda
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3: THE ACCOUNTING
OFFICER’S FOREWORD

The

college

has

seen

many

challenges,

achievements and highlights during 2019.

ways to make the challenges into opportunities.

All

these experiences can be added and used as part

The core business of West Coast TVET College,

of the leadership, growth and management of the

education and training is continuing to grow as

institution.

the numbers of occupational, NC(V) and NATED
surpasses the targets. The college is therefore

Some of the achievements and highlights include:
•

looking at both the challenges and achievement

Appointment of the Principal and Chief

and will continue using that to shape the future of

Executive Officer

the college. We have also seen an interest in our

•

Appointment of Deputy Principal: Finance

renewable energy field of study that is in line with

•

Student

the current rate expected as the green economy

•
•

Participation

in

the

National

WorldSkills SA Competition

is growing and expanding in the various areas

Sending of our lecturer to Russia to attend

including the Saldanha Bay IDZ and the Atlantis

the WorldSkills International Competition

SEZ – both of which we are partners and the lead

First cohort of Centre of Specialisation

training institution.

students
•

SABS certification

I would like to take a moment to thank the previous

•

Visit by the Deputy Minister for Water and

council for their leadership and support over the

Sanitation as part of our Water week and

past years during their time of office and at the

Mandela Day Celebrations

same time would like to welcome the new college

One of the top colleges regarding NC(V)

council and the various members who have been

results in the country

selected to be a part of this. We believe that you

Clean financial audit outcome

will continue and expand where the previous

•
•

Some of the challenges included:
•

Student Strikes – NSFAS Allowances

•

Load Shedding

•

Student Dropouts

council left off and we look forward to your input
and leadership in the coming years.

Some of the mentioned challenges are however,

__________________________________

out of our control, but the college has gone through

Mr Lungisa Mbulawa

these challenges and have come up with other

Chief Executive Officer/Principal
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4: STATEMENT OF
RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm

6. The Auditor-General and/or external auditors

the following:

express an independent opinion on the annual
financial statements.

1. All

information

and

amounts

disclosed

throughout the Annual Report are consistent.

In my opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects

2. The Annual Report has been prepared in

the operations, the performance information, the

accordance with the guidelines issued by the

human resources information and the financial

Department of Higher Education and Training.

affairs of West Coast TVET College for the

3. The Annual Financial Statements have been

financial year ended 31 December 2019.

prepared in accordance with the relevant
standards, frameworks and guidelines issued
by National Treasury.
4. The Accounting Officer, i.e. the Chief Executive
Officer/Principal,

is

responsible

for

the

preparation of the Annual Financial Statements
and for the judgements made in this document.
5. The Accounting Officer, i.e. the Chief Executive
Officer/Principal, is responsible for establishing
and implementing a system of internal control
that has been designed to provide reasonable
assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the performance information, the human

__________________________________

resources information and the Annual Financial

Mr Lungisa Mbulawa

Statements.

Chief Executive Officer/Principal
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5: STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

5.1

VISION,

MISSION

AND

VALUE

STATEMENTS

VISION
To be an internationally
recognised TVET
institution responsive
to the skills
development and
training needs of the
21st century

5.2

VALUES

MISSION
To provide TVET services
of relevance and have a
responsive
programme
qualification
mix
by
training students to:
• be skilled and capable
• have access to and
success in Higher
Education
• exploit
entrepreneurship
opportunities

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Respect
Motivation
Fairness
Honesty & Integrity
Quality Driven &
Responsive
• Responsibility and
Accountability
•
•
•
•
•

increase the number of students who are

The goals of the college are as follows:

adequately prepared to enter the labour
market or further and higher learning

•

Strategic Goal 1: To provide quality

opportunities.

technical and vocational education and

•

•

training services and increase academic

business excellence in terms of good

achievement and success of students.

corporate

Strategic Goal 2: To have adequate

management of all college resources as

infrastructure and systems in place to

well as information and data reporting.

increase and provide effective services to
•

Strategic Goal 4: To ensure continuous

•

governance

and

effective

Strategic Goal 5: To monitor and evaluate

students.

all college processes in terms of the

Strategic Goal 3: To develop partnerships

framework for TVET college performance

and maintain good stakeholder relations to

and report quarterly in this regard.
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6.

LEGISLATION AND OTHER DIRECTIVES

colleges are required to produce annual financial

6.1

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

reports and to comply with any reasonable
additional

reporting

requirement

established

West Coast College is enjoined by Section 44(3)

by the Minister.

Moreover, Section 44 of the

of the Act, read in conjunction with section 25(3) of

Act requires colleges to annually report to the

the same Act to prepare and submit to the Minister

Minister in respect of its performance and its use

for Higher Education and Training an annual

of available resources. In addition, these pieces of

report.

legislation govern and steer the college in terms
of achievement of its strategic and performance

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the
Continuing

Education

and

Training

objectives.

(CET)

•

Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended),

The National Qualifications Framework
(NQF) Act 67/2008;

public technical and vocational education and

•

The Higher Education (HE) Act 101/1997;

training (TVET) colleges are required to produce

•

The Skills Development Act 97/1998 and

annual financial reports and to comply with any
reasonable

additional

reporting

Amendments;

requirement

•

established by the Minister. Moreover, Section 44

The Higher Education Laws Amendment
Act 21/2011;

of the Act requires colleges to annually report to

•

the Minister in respect of its performance and its

The Higher Education and Training Laws
Amendment Act 23/2012;

use of available resources.

•

The National Student Financial Aid Scheme
(NSFAS) Act 56/1999;

In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and

•

steer the college in terms of achievement of its

South African Council of Educators (SACE)
Act 31/2000;

strategic and performance objectives.

•

Labour

Relations

Act

66/1995

and

Amendments;
6.2

LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

•

Employment of Educators Act 76/1998;

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the

•

General Further Education and Training

Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges

Quality Assurance Act 58/2001.

Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical
and vocational education and training (TVET)
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PART B:
GOVERNANCE
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7. REPORT OF COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON
7.1

CONSTITUTION OF THE COLLEGE COUNCIL AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
7.1.1 Membership
The membership of the Council up to 31 March 2019 were:
Prof Aubrey Redlinghuis (Chairperson - External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation: Strategic & Institutional
Planning, Quality Assurance).
Ms Zuziwe Zantsi (Deputy Chairperson- External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation: Human Resource
Development, Academic Student Support Specialist)
Mr Lungisa Mbulawa (Acting Chief Executive Officer/Principal – Internal)
Ms Johanna Stoffels (Council Member- External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation: Active Community
Engagement and Involvement)
Dr Keith Jacobs (Council Member- External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Educational, Leadership)
Ms Elmarie Du Plessis (Council Member- External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Legal, Financial)
Mr Hendri Kok (Council Member- External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Financial, Accounting)
Mr Kevin Nangle (Council Member- External - Section 10(4)(d), Specialisation: Donor)
Mr Christopher Maans (Council Member-External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation: Active Community
Engagement and Involvement)
Professor Francis Sonn (Council Member-External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation:

Education –

resigned 28 August 2018)
Ms Nomathemba Dapula (Academic Board representative – Internal)
Mr Thomas Obdrabu (Support Staff representative - Internal)
Mr Phumzile Nkuzo (Lecturing/Academic Staff representative - Internal)
The membership of the Council commencing from 1 April 2019 were:
Ms Babalwa Mtini (Frans) (Chairperson - External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation: Financial.
Mr Derick Arthur Fredericks (Deputy Chairperson- External - Section 10(4)(b), Specialisation: Human
Resource Development)
Mr Lungisa Mbulawa (Chief Executive Officer/Principal– Internal)
Prof Joseph Ivala Kioko (Council Member - External - Section 10(6), Specialisation:

Educational,

Leadership)
Prof Monwabisi Ralarala (Council Member – External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Educational,
Leadership)
Dr Nothemba Joyce Nduna (Council Member - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Educational, Leadership)
Mr Hendri Kok (Council Member - External Section 10(6), Specialisation: Financial, Accounting)
Ms Nombulelo Tyandela (Council Member - External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Audit, Financial)
Advocate Mandla Mdludlu (Council Member - External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: Legal)
Prof Ephias Ruhode (Council Member - External - Section 10(6), Specialisation: IT, Leadership)
Mr Tom Mkhwanazi External Council Member - Section 10(4)(d), Specialisation: Donor
Ms Nomathemba Dapula (Academic Board representative – Internal)
Mr Mthunzi Matya (Support Staff representative - Internal)
Mr Afrika Tshona (Lecturing/Academic Staff representative - Internal)
Mr Mbasa Ndinwa (SRC President -President - Internal – term of office concluded 31 December 2019)
Ms Sesethu Feni (SRC Deputy President - Internal – term of office concluded 31 December 2019)
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7.1.2
•

Performance in terms of its statutory functions, explained in Section 10(1)-(3) of the CET Act
This is the first year of a five-year term for the current council. The Council operated with 16 members.
Appointments were made in 2019 in terms of Sections 10(4) and 10(6) of the CET Act. All vacancies
filled. The two Student Representative Council members were replaced in 2019.

•

As a result of the timing when appointments were made, it resulted in most of the committees only
meeting twice for the year.

•

Compliance to the College Charter ensured functionality of the College Council.

•

All Council members and Academic Board members signed the College Code of Conduct. A declaration
of interest register is signed before every Council, Academic Board and Council Committee meeting
commences.

7.1.3

Structure

COLLEGE COUNCIL

Mandatory

7.1.4

Executive

SRC

Academic
Board

Audit & Risk

Conditions of
Employment

Finance

Strategy and Planning

Council reviewed and approved the following college strategies and plans in 2019:
•

Strategic Plan 2020

•

Annual Performance Plan 2019

•

Operational Plan 2019

•

College Budget 2019

•

College Annual Report 2018

•

Committees of Council Work plans

College Councill during 2019
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Planning &
Resource

7.2

REPORTS BY COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

7.2.1 Audit, Risk & IT committee
a. Introduction
This Audit, Risk & IT Committee Annual Report is for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2019
and includes the opinion of the Audit, Risk & IT Committee on the reliance to be placed on the internal
control and reporting systems of the College. The opinion is based on the Committee’s consideration
of the College’s Risk Register, the internal auditor’s reports, a draft of the external auditor’s Management Letter, the ethics officers reports and other work commissioned by the Committee during the
year, and on discussions at its meetings and workshops.
Internal auditor
The College had an Internal Audit Unit throughout 2019 Financial year augmented with the support
of an external audit company.
Internal audit reports
This report refers only to those final internal audit reports that have been received and considered
by the Audit, Risk & IT Committee during the financial year under consideration and up to the date of
this report. During 2019 and up to the point of writing, the Committee has received and considered
the internal audit reports.
External auditor
AGSA is appointed External Auditors of West Coast TVET College.
Ethics Officer
The College had an Ethics Office function throughout 2019.
Ethics reports
This report refers only to those final ethics reports that have been received and considered
by the Audit, Risk & IT Committee during the financial year under consideration and up to the date of
this report. During 2019 and up to the point of writing, the Committee has received and considered
four ethics reports.
b. Terms of reference
The Audit, Risk & IT Committee’s terms of reference are set out in the Audit, Risk & IT Committee
Charter of DHET to amongst others:
o to review the effectiveness of the College’s internal systems of financial and other control;
o to advise the Council on matters relating to the external and internal auditors including their appointment, the provision by the auditors of any additional services outside the scope of their regular responsibilities, the remuneration of the auditors, and any questions relating to the resignation
or dismissal of auditors;
o to ensure that sufficient resources are made available for internal audit;
o to approve proposals for internal audit put forward by the internal auditors;
o to review annually with the external auditors, the nature and scope of the external audit;
o to consider any reports submitted by the auditors, both external and internal;
o to monitor the implementation of any recommendations made by the internal auditors;

14

o to satisfy themselves that satisfactory arrangements are adopted throughout the College for promoting economy, efficiency, effectiveness, and risk management;
o to establish appropriate performance measures and to monitor annually the performance and
effectiveness of the external and internal auditors;
o to consider, in consultation with the external auditors, (i) any financial statements including the
auditors’ report, and (ii) any statement provided by the Council on the governance of the College;
o to ensure that all significant losses are properly investigated and that the internal and external
auditors, and where appropriate the DHET, are informed;
o to oversee the College’s policy on fraud and irregularity, and to ensure that they are informed of
any action taken under that policy;
o to prepare and submit an annual report to the Council and the Department of Higher Education
and Training; and
o to forward minutes of their meetings to the Council.
c. Audit, Risk & IT Committee assessment
This section provides the Audit, Risk & IT Committee’s assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of institutional arrangements during 2019 and up to the date of this report.
Risk management, control, and governance
The Audit, Risk & IT Committee has monitored and considered the effectiveness of the College’s
risk management, control, and governance throughout 2019. These arrangements, together with a
values-based ethical culture, support the College in fulfilling its policies, aims, and objectives, enabling the College to identify, understand, and manage its principal risks, and to be accountable and
transparent in its governance. The Committee has noted that there has been continuous improvement across the College’s activities: the College is making clear and sustained efforts to understand,
communicate, and incorporate best practice in risk management, governance and internal controls.
Economy, efficiency, and effectiveness (value for money)
The Committee has monitored the effectiveness of the College’s financial controls, systems, and
management structures in place for promoting efficiency, effectiveness, and economy in the use of
public funds and other resources.
The Committee has noted the continuing adoption of and improvement in financial procedures and
management practices designed to support the achievement of value for money and institutional
effectiveness.
Data integrity
The Audit, Risk & IT Committee has monitored the effectiveness of the College’s management and
quality assurance of data submitted to DHET and to other funding bodies. Internal audit reviews of
various aspects of data management have been conducted in the year for which assurance was
given.
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d. Meetings
The Audit, Risk & IT Committee held two meetings in 2019.
e. Internal audit
Provider
The College had an Internal Audit Department since 2015.
Review of appointment
The performance of the internal auditor augmented with the support of an external audit company is
considered annually by the Committee and in compliance with Audit, Risk and IT charter.
Review of internal audit
Internal Audit Strategy, Risk Based Operational Plan and Internal Audit Charter were considered and
approved by the Audit, Risk & IT Committee for the 2019 Financial year.
The Internal Audit reports for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 were received by the
Audit, Risk & IT Committee. These reports were in terms of the Approved Risk Based Audit Plan.
Review of audit risk assessment and strategy
Internal audit plans are planned annually per department and function on the basis of the weighted
risks and ownership identified in the College’s key risk register.
Review of audit reports
The Committee considered all reports submitted by the internal audit team. Each internal audit
report is assigned to a member of the Committee for detailed consideration. The findings were presented to the Committee, highlighting any key points and/or concerns.
f. External audit
Provider
External Auditors of West Coast TVET College is AGSA.
Review of the management letter
The Audit Committee considered the report of AGSA with the remarks on auditing and accounting
matters, detailed control observations, and other observations on the College.
g. Ethics Management
The Audit, Risk & IT Committee has monitored the effectiveness of the College’s ethics management
function and reviews the following commitments to be fulfilled by the Ethics Office:
•

Conducting an Ethics Risk Assessment (every three years)

•

Positioning the Ethics Strategy to address the Ethics Risks identified

•

Reviewing Ethics Codes and Policies

•

Institutionalisation of Ethics (Communication strategies, Recruitment and Selection processes,
Orientation of new employees, Performance Management and reward systems, Training and
awareness campaigns, Monitoring and reporting systems)

•

Monitoring and Reporting (Institutionalising and managing a confidential reporting system i.e. an
ethics whistleblowing line as well as an ethics helpdesk, appropriate consequence management
procedures)

Provider
The College had an Ethics Office since August 2017.
Review of appointment
The performance of the Ethics Officer is considered annually by the Committee.
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Review of ethics management
The functions of the Ethics Office were considered and approved by the Audit, Risk & IT Committee
for the 2019 financial year.
The Ethics reports for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 were received by the Audit,
Risk & IT Committee. These reports were drafted in terms of the Ethics Management Strategy and
include four main items:
1) Programme implementation
2) Trends (Ethics risk assessments, Declarations of interest, Gift registers, Training, Helpline reports, Hotline reports)
3) Critical incidents
4) Strategic considerations
Review of ethics reports
The Committee considered all reports submitted by the Ethics Officer. Each ethics report is assigned
to a member of the Committee for detailed consideration. The member then presented the findings
to the Committee, highlighting any key points and/or concerns.
h. Other work undertaken
Statement of internal control
The Council is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. The Audit, Risk & IT Committee supports the Council in this role through the following processes:
o The Council received periodic reports from the Chair of the Audit, Risk & IT Committee concerning
internal control and received the minutes of all meetings of the Audit, Risk & IT Committee;
o The Audit, Risk & IT Committee received regular reports from the internal auditor(s), which include the internal auditor’s independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of internal control and risk management, together with recommendations for improvement;
o The Council’s review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work
of the internal auditor(s);
o The Audit, Risk & IT Committee reviewed and reported on the implementation of recommendations made and agreed in the regular audit cycle and other investigations.
Review of institution’s risk management strategy
The College’s approach to risk management
The College pursues good practice in Risk Management, and endeavours to comply fully with PFMA
and other statutory requirements. The College’s view of acceptable risk is derived from a balanced
view of all the risks in its operating environment. Risks are prioritized and assessed according to
qualitative and quantitative measures. The strategy is as follows:
o A Risk Policy is reviewed and revised regularly;
o The identification of the fundamental risks affecting the College and its Departments. These are
reviewed regularly to ensure that the full scope of the College’s activities is covered;
o Determining the appropriate risk appetite and level of exposure for the College as a whole;
o Implementation of arrangements to manage fundamental risks and examination of the effectiveness of those arrangements. Where risk management is judged weak, poorly understood, or
limited in effect, controls have been and will be enhanced;
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o Allocating responsibility for the management of risks to senior management;
o A review of risks and their management at least once a year.
Risk management – the role of the Audit, Risk & IT Committee and its auditors
i. Audit, Risk & IT Committee
The Audit, Risk & IT Committee provides advice to the Council on the effectiveness of the Risk Steering Committee and on the internal control system, including the College’s system for the management of risk. The Audit, Risk & IT Committee received the College’s key risk register at its quarterly
meetings.
Members of the Audit, Risk & IT Committee bring their copies of the key risk register to all meetings
to help inform discussions of audit reports and the impact on risk management, and also to plan the
audit cycle.
ii. Internal audit programme
The internal audit programme is responsible for providing independent and objective assurance on
the College’s operations in order to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the College’s internal
control systems. The internal audit strategy is developed around the College’s objectives and assessment of the fundamental risks including an evaluation of the effectiveness of the College’s risk
management process. Risk management arrangements are a standard and continuing aspect of all
departmental audits.
iii. External audit
External audit informs the Audit Committee on the operation of the internal financial controls reviewed as part of the annual audit.
iv. Other work
The Audit, Risk & IT Committee has a number of standing agenda items: Value for Money (VFM),
Fraud, Risk Management and IT Governance. For each of these items it asks for updates from senior
management of the College and also seeks assurance from the internal auditors.
•

Value for money
The College’s Planning and Resource Committee and Finance Committee oversees VFM reporting for the College. The internal auditors consider VFM as a standard item in institution audits.

•

Fraud
Under the Financial Regulations, any member of staff must report immediately to the Internal Audit and Human Resource any suspicion of bribery, fraud, or other irregularity. College has a fraud
Hotline to enable whistle-blowers to report any suspected or instances of Fraud.

•

Risk management
The Committee’s consideration of the College’s Risk Management Strategy has included continuous reviews of the Risk Register which is regularly updated and presented at each Audit, Risk
& IT Committee Meeting.

v) Quality Assurance
In 2019, the West Coast TVET College was recertified by the South African Bureau of Standards
(SABS) to the new ISO 9001:2015 International Standard. During the audit, there were no findings.
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Maintaining the ISO 9001:2015 certification of the West Coast TVET College continues to be a challenge due to organisational growth in student and staff numbers.
Quality Awareness amongst staff at all levels of the organisation has improved for the period of this
report. Quality Awareness and the importance of compliance to the ISO 9001:2015 International
Standard will continue to be priority and has the commitment of the Top Management of the College.
During the review period a number of West Coast TVET College policy documents were introduced
to staff members through the electronic QMS after being approved by the College Council. This
included a number of policy documents issued by the Department of Higher Education and Training
(DHET).
•

Internal Systems Audits
Internal audits to the requirements of the International (ISO) Standard, DHET Policies, College
Policies and College Procedures were conducted at campuses and the various departments at
central office. This was done in line with the approved 2019 Internal Audit Plan.
Non-compliances were reported to campus management and departmental managers, non-conformance reports (CAR’s) were issued accordingly and corrective actions requested.
Review Meetings with Process Owners were held on a continuous basis to review, modify and
streamline all relevant College Process Maps. For this review period, a total of twenty-one (21)
Policy documents and more than eighty (80+) Support documents and Forms were reviewed or
introduced and approved and these approved documents are available on the electronic Quality
Management System (QMS).
The annual Management Review meeting, a requirement of ISO 9001:2015, was held in April
2019 where documents, processes and procedures as well as other key aspects of the West
Coast TVET College Quality Management System were reviewed by Top Management.
The benefits of using Quality Tools such as Continuous Improvement, Corrective Actions, Preventive Actions and Non Conformances (NCR’s) were highlighted at management and staff meetings on a continuous basis.

•

Staff and Student Surveys

(a) Student Enrolment Survey
The purpose of the survey was to identify gaps, implement actions and utilise opportunities to
continually improve the campus environment and registration processes. This survey was conducted in March 2019 for the new NC(V) Level 2, Report 191: N1 and N4 students.
.
(b) Recruiter Survey
This survey is being conducted as it is part of the drive to improve customer service and to respond adequately by putting corrective actions in place. This survey was conducted in March
2019.
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(c) Staff Registration Survey
This survey is directed to staff to get their impression about the college’s registration process.
Their feedback is important in order to enable the college to improve its registration process and
to enhance customer service. This survey was conducted in April 2019.
(d) Student Exit Survey
The purpose of the survey was to find additional approaches to continually improve the services,
training and the learning environment; to ensure that all the students have equal opportunities,
gained the knowledge and experience needed for them to achieve their goals and prepare them
for the future. This survey was conducted in July and October 2019 for the exit NC(V) Level 4
and Report 191: N6 students.
vi. Occupational Health and Safety
The following activities formed part of the Occupational Health and Safety management system:
•

Regular review of equipment and facilities at residences, campus classrooms and workshops in
order to identify, address and close any possible gaps.

•

Supply and replacement of Fire Fighting equipment at campuses and at existing residences of the
college.

•

Regular Health and Safety Inspections were conducted at campuses and the central office by
trained H&S Representatives in order to ensure compliance to local, provincial and national requirements and ensure the continued safety of students and staff.

•

In October 2019, Higher Power Protection (Pty) Ltd conducted health and safety compliance audits at the various campuses. All five campuses received certificates of compliance.

7.2.2 Finance Committee
The Finance Committee was fully constituted during 2019. Two meetings were held. The Finance
Committee performed as follows:
•

Reviewed the process for the production of AFS;

•

Reviewed and approved draft AFS and recommended adjustments;

•

The Finance Committee reviewed the AFS before issue to AG;

•

Reviewed and approved Finance policies;

•

Performed an overview consultation with AG;

•

Approved the 2020 Annual Budget and Fees;

•

Assessed funding sustainability;

•

Assessed capital expenditure programme and the sources of funding;

•

Reviewed the capacity building and training strategy for staff of the Finance Department;

•

Assessed the college business strategy in context of going concern; and

•

Assessed fraud and corruption potential and deterrence action.

7.2.3 Conditions of Employment committee
The Conditions of Employment Committee was fully constituted during 2019. Two meetings were held.
The Conditions of Employment Committee performed as follows:
•

Ensured that the College complied with all relevant provisions in the CET Act, the Labour Relations
Act, the Basic Conditions of Employment Act, the Employment Equity Act and any other applicable
laws;

•

Determined staff working conditions, privileges, etc;
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•

Ensured that appropriate systems of recruitment and selection, performance management, employee termination, skills development policies, employee and contract administration and employee
relations have been established;

•

Ensured that the organisational structure of the college is aligned to meet the strategic objectives of
the institution and that the systematic matching and placing of staff into the posts have been undertaken;

•

Ensured that sufficient and appropriate lecturers and support staff are appointed and that the following factors are taken into account when they are appointed:

•

-

the ability of the candidate

-

the principle of equity

-

the need to redress the past injustices

-

the need for representivity;

Adopted a Disciplinary Code for Lecturers and Support Staff in accordance with the College Statute;
and

•

Recommended to Council policies and procedures for managing staff and ensure that monitoring
and reporting systems and formats are in place and delegations of authority are established and
implemented.

7.2.4 Planning and Resource Committee
The Planning and Resource Committee was fully constituted during 2019. Two meetings were held.
The Planning and Resource Committee performed as follows:
•

Oversaw and reviewed the planning, organisation and review of the College’s strategic plan;

•

Monitored the implementation of the College’s Strategic Plan;

•

Monitored the implementation of the College’s Annual Performance Plan;

•

Monitored the allocation and usage of the College’s resources in line with the objectives of its strategic plan:

•

-

Monitored the implementation of the Marketing and Recruitment Strategy;

-

Monitored the implementation of the Fundraising Strategy;

-

Recommended consumption targets in line with the Budget to Council;

-

Monitored consumption usage;

-

Recommended Recycling targets to Council; and

-

Monitored Recycling usage;

Reviewed the allocation and usage of the College’s resources as per the Annual Performance Plans;
and

•
7.3

Recommended to Council policies related to managing resources more effectively.

ACADEMIC BOARD

The Academic Board was fully constituted during 2019. Two meetings were held. The Academic Board performed as follows:
7.3.1 Certification
•

Monitored the results analysis.

•

Recommended to Council the College Improvement plan.

•

Recommended to Council the Academic Support budget that catered for: Tutors; Guest Lecturers
and Additional support materials.

•

Monitored effective Teaching and Learning by checking reports on Academic Process maps.

•

Implementation of Attendance & Punctuality Policy
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•

Monitored the implementation of this policy – reported on stages as per the policy.

•

Monitored evidence of advocacy – students have signed documents to acknowledge and accept the
policy.

•

Less than 15% of students were not allowed to sit for the subjects’ exams due to policy implementation.

7.3.2 Retention Plan
•

Recommended Retention Plan to the Council.

•

Monitored implementation of the plan.

7.3.3 Throughput
•

Set the targets for throughput rate.

•

Monitored the process map on the implementation of the strategies.

7.3.4 Placement
•

Monitored implementation of the plan. Focus on ensuring unplaced students with preference to NATED N6 students from prior years placed in order for them to obtain their full qualification.

7.3.5 Programme Qualifications Mix
•

No additional qualifications were requested for implementation in 2019.

7.3.6 Research Committee
•

A Subcommittee of the Academic Board with a Research agenda was established.

•

Term of reference and charter was approved by the Council.

•

Advocacy about the research unit was done in all campuses.

•

Two training workshops conducted for the committee members to capacitate them on their role within
the Research unit.

7.3.7 Staff awards

7.4

•

Hosted Staff Awards event to recognise and award individual performing staff.

•

Campuses were ranked according to their results and attendance.

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL REPORT

The SRC was fully constituted during 2019 across all campuses. The executive members performed as follows:
7.4.1 Induction
•

All SRC members were taken through a 3 days’ workshop where they were taken through and capacitated on student governance, leadership as well as policies of the college.

7.4.2 Meetings
•

6 executive meetings and 2 general SRC meeting were held.

7.4.3 Academic Activities
•

Tutors were identified in all campuses to assist those students that are struggling in various subjects.

•

For the motivational initiative, Top Achievers were identified and were awarded with medals per programme.

•

Two levels of Debate competitions were held. 25 students were chosen to participate at college level
and the top 2 students represented the college at the TVET Colleges National Debate in Cape Town
International Convention Centre (ICC).

7.4.4 Student Awareness
•

The SRC assisted during the registration drives and advocating and encouraging their fellow students on the importance of 80% attendance policy and signing of Schedule of Particulars for the
Bursaries.
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7.4.5 Student Activities
The following campaigns were hosted across campuses:
•

Health and Wellness

•

Gender Diversity & Sexuality;

•

Red Lip Campaign to speak against Sexual Abuse;

•

Suicidal and Depression;

•

Bullying;

•

Wear a Doek Day to support Women’s month and Cancer Awareness;

•

Healthy Lifestyle;

•

National Disability;

•

Casual Day (Funds were raised to assist Robinvale Special School);

•

Recycling;

•

SRC members also assisted in the 15 HIV/AIDS The Higher Education and Training HIV/AIDS Programme (HEAIDS) which is a national facility to develop and support the HIV mitigation programmes
with 15 activation days. 2 350 students were tested with awareness programme awareness on
circumcision and family planning;

•

Community Clean Up Campaign Day;

•

16 Days of Activism Against Gender-Based Violence is an international campaign to challenge violence against women and girls; and

•

Community organisations were visited, food parcels and clothes were donated to these following
organisations: South African Police Services; Thusong Centre; Crèches; Babbel & Krabbel; Badisa;
Haasbekkie; Heuwelrus Old Age Home; VGK Church; Care givers Hospice; and Gouer Old age
home (for Arbour Day).

7.4.6 Residences Campaigns
The following residence campaigns were hosted through the year:
•

Hygiene

•

Being a team player

•

Risky behaviours

•

Peer Pressure

•

Managing Stress/risky situation

•

Conflict Resolutions

•

Taking responsibility for yourself

7.4.7 Social Activities
The following activities were hosted through the year across the campuses:
•

Miss Valentine

•

Modelling Show

•

Mandela Day

•

Residence movie night, fun games days, car wash etc.

7.4.8 Other Activities
The following activities were hosted through the year across the campuses:
•

Women’s prayers meetings

•

Christian Students prayer meetings

7.4.9 Disciplinary issues
•

As stipulated in the Student Disciplinary Code of Conduct, members ensured transparency and fairness in Student Disciplinary cases conducted.
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7.4.10 Sport and Recreational Activities
•

Athletics, Cricket, Chess, Soccer, Rugby and Netball as well as Indigenous games were hosted as
the Sports Programme for 2019. A total of R1 275 was raised in lieu of fundraising.

•

Athletics – 50 students participated in the provincial Athletic games and placed 2nd out of 5 colleges.

•

Rugby – participated in the Western Cape Provincial TVET colleges tournament in South Cape
College in George and were crowned for second place

•

Student Social Events – various social events were held and a total of R6 960 was raised.

•

Intercampus League Games were played:

Champions for 2019 for the various codes are as follows:

•

-

Rugby:			

Vredenburg Campus

-

Netball:			

Vredendal Campus

-

Soccer (Males):

Malmesbury Campus

-

Soccer (Females): Vredendal Campus

Campuses also participated in their local community games in the following codes: Rugby, Soccer
and Netball.

7.4.11 Heritage Music Festival
•

About 250 students attended a Heritage Music Festival. R5 600 was raised from the fundraising
initiative.

•

50 Students from the Malmesbury Campus represented the college in the Western Province Choir
Festival held in Khayelitsha (False Bay TVET College) with other Western Cape TVET Colleges
during October 2019.

7.4.12 Monthly Stipends
•
7.4.13

Stipends were paid to 27 SRC members till November 2019.
Closing Ceremony

•

The SRC executive had a closing and awards ceremony at Malmesbury Central Office, where all
chairpersons did a presentation on all the activities and involvement at their campuses.
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COLLEGE PERFORMANCE AND ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT

West Coast TVET College is situated in the Western Cape and serves the West Coast district and the following
municipalities: City of Cape Town, Bergrivier, Saldanha, Cederberg and Matzikama.
There are five campuses: Atlantis, Citrusdal, Malmesbury, Vredenburg and Vredendal with a central office in
Malmesbury.
We have five residences accommodating 1 140 students. The facilities in Malmesbury and Atlantis are leased.

9.1

Population information
West Coast TVET College serves a total community of more than 390,000 people. (www.capetown.gov.
za). The population composition in terms of race is as follows: Coloured 67.1%; African 16.5%; White
15.8%.

9.2

Education
The percentage of the adult population which have no schooling is 8%. The functional literacy of residents that have grade 9 or attended Adult Basic Education Training up till level four is 26%. (West Coast
District Municipality IDP 2011-2015).

9.3

Economy
The major economic drivers in the region are: Finance and Business Services – 25.6%; Manufacturing
Sector – 17.7%; Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing – 14.6%; Wholesale and retail trade, catering and
accommodation – 12.8%. Growth in both Manufacturing (10%) and Wholesale and retail trade, catering
and accommodation (3%) were noted since the previous report.

9.4

Household income and employment
In 2011 the total number of households with no income in the West Coast Region was 8,06%, while the
number falling below R9600 per annum was 21,8%. The economically active persons stood at about
38% (CSIR 2006). The unemployment rate was pegged at 15.5% in 2007 (Western Cape Provincial
Treasury Profile).
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9.5

Economic Opportunities
The West Coast District is a strong regional development corridor linking the metropolitan City of
Cape Town to the economies of Namibia and Angola in the North. The region has a burgeoning tourism, aquaculture, alternative energy and oil and gas industry, with Saldanha identified as an Industrial
Development Zone. Over the period of review, we have partnered to assist in the development of these
growth sectors.

9.6

College relationships with local authorities and local employers
College partnerships include links with government departments, the municipalities in the area: City of
Cape Town, Bergrivier, Saldanha, Cederberg and Matzikama; and employers in the different economic
sectors e.g. Welding and Engineering.
Key stakeholders include Vaalmac, Dormac, Westacore, Genwest, Filigree, D & C Engineering, Transnet, Sea Harvest, Atlantis Foundries and ABSA bank.
The involvement of the Sector Education and Training Authorities remains a key imperative for the colleges on going skills delivery programmes. We currently have partnerships with 14 of the SETAs.
Increased occupational programme offerings and placement were done through funding and/or support
received from the following:
•

Agriculture Sector Education Training Authority (AGRISETA)

•

CapeNature

•

Chemical Industries Education & Training Authority (CHIETA)

•

Construction Sector Education and Training Authority (CETA)

•

Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Sector Education and Training Authority (CATHSSETA)

•

Department of Public Works (DPW)

•

Department of Economic Development and Tourism (DEDAT)

•

Department of Labour (DoL)

•

Department of Social Development

•

Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and Training Authority (ETDP)

•

Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority (EWSETA)

•

Fibre, Processing & Manufacturing Sector Education and Training Authority (FPMSETA)

•

Health and Welfare Sector Education and Training Authority (HWSETA)

•

Insurance Sector Education and Training Authority (INSETA)

•

Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training Authority (MERSETA)

9.7

•

Mining Qualifications Authority (MQA)

•

National Rural Youth Service Corps (NARYSEC)

•

National Skills Fund (NSF)

•

Services Sector Education and Training Authority (SERVICES)

•

Transport Sector Education and Training Authority (TETA)

•

Western Cape Education Department (WCED)

•

Wholesale and Retail Sector Education and Training Authority (W&RSETA)

International Partners
Our current International Partners include the following:
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10

•

South Birmingham College (United Kingdom)

•

Blackburn College (United Kingdom)

•

Kirkeparken School (Norway)

•

Magdeburg Gastronomie Fachschule (Germany)

•

Stockport College (UK)

PERFORMANCE REPORTING

10.1 Significant Achievements during the 2019 Academic Year
West Coast TVET College continues to break new ground in increasing access, with another considerable increase in NATED /Report 191 enrolments and the foundational programmes. The increase in the
number of artisans shows our commitment to the call of the Minister, Blade Nzimande which speaks to
the ”Decade of the Artisan”.
We have also increased the numbers of students assisted with bursaries and financial aid with a significant number from external donors. This is as a result of the Fundraiser appointed and the Fundraising
Strategy which has been approved by the College Council.
On the academic front, we have increased our certification rate for NC(V) from 56.10% to 63.92%
whilst the throughput increased for NATED N6 from 50% to 56%. This speaks to the commitment and
dedication of lecturers and support staff and the effective implementation of the Teaching and Learning,
Retention and Improvement Plans.
On course placement has significantly increased with more students on the various levels placed as part
of the Work Integrated Learning programme.
A number of contracts have been secured with industry, SETAs and other funders for stipends, placements and programme offering. As a result, we’ve recorded an increase in the number of NATED N6
students placed into industry, but more importantly seen a significant increase in the number of students
receiving diplomas. We were also recognised by DHET for Excellence in Placement and received a
Gold Award.
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2019 Planned
Target

2019 annual
Achievement

11 437
520
30
100

1.1.2. Number of Headcount enrolment (n)

1.1.3. Number of students enrolled in
artisan-related programmes (n)

1.1.4. Number of students completing
artisan-related programmes (n)

1.1.5. Number of students
in
foundation
or
programmes (n)

50

5

1.1.7. Number of students completing
entrepreneurial programmes (n)

1.1.8. Number of campuses compliant
with student registration and
enrolment
management
standards (n)
5

75

100%

88

30

789

12 501

1

50%
66%
66%

1

1.2.2. Student support plan reviewed,
implemented and monitored (n)

1.2.3. % Certification in:
• NC(V) Level 4
• N3
• N6

1

1.2.1. Teaching & learning plan
reviewed, implemented and
monitored (n)

63.92%
57.63%
62.03%

1

1

Strategic Objective 1.2.: Improve throughput and certification rates

65%

1.1.6. % successful completion of
bridging or foundational learning
programmes

enrolled
bridging

1

1.1.1. Marketing & Communication
strategy
reviewed
and
implemented

Annual target exceeded
Annual target not achieved
Annual target not achieved

Planned Target achieved

Planned Target achieved

Annual target achieved

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

Annual target not achieved

Annual target achieved

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

Annual target achieved

Strategic Objective 1.1.: Improve recruitment, placement and selection processes

Performance Indicators

Explanatory Remarks

Strategic Goal 1: To provide quality technical and vocational education and training services and increase academic achievement and success of students

10.2		 Annual Performance Achievements
STRATEGIC GOALS, OBJECTIVES, PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND ANNUAL TARGETS
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40%

20%
40%
40%
30.27%

30.27%
44%
56%
Annual target not achieved

Annual target exceeded
Annual target exceeded
Annual target exceeded

100

50

(ii) SETA bursaries

(iii) Other bursaries (specify)

62

271

6 518

6 851

Annual target exceeded:
Q1: Future Managers (2), Afrimat (1)
Q2: Afmine (1)
Q3: Kliphoek Soutwerke (1), Dwaggas Soutwerke (1), Thenga Holdings (10).
Q4: Duferco (46)

Annual target exceeded:
Q1: CATHSSETA (14)
Q2: W&R SETA (28)
Q3: INSETA (154); W&R SETA (75)

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

2019 Planned
Target

2019 annual
Achievement

2.1.2. ICT infrastructure development
strategy reviewed & implemented

2.1.1. Number of existing T&L
facilities refurbished or upgraded
(n)
(i) Classrooms or theoretical
facilities
(ii) Practical facilities
(iii) Other (specify)

50

200

12

0

1

22

13

1

272

25

Strategic Objective 2.1.: Provide adequate systems and infrastructure

Performance Indicators

4 computer rooms cabling refurbished and upgraded (ATL, CTD, VRB & VRD)
4 computer room desks replaced
VRB Staffroom upgraded
3 server rooms upgraded servers (ATL, MLB & VRD)
Redid MLB Hospitality collapsed underground sleeve to building & installed fibre line serving 6 rooms.
(2 Kitchens, 1 classroom, 2 offices, 1 store)
Perimeter fence at ATL and CTD installed.
CCTV installations in CO, ATL, CTD, MLB and VRD
Refurbishment of all offices and residences with vinyl tiles in ATL, CTD, VRB and VRD.
6 classrooms in VRB built
Network cabling and fibre backbone for 6 new VRB classrooms completed
Annual Target achieved

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Annual target achieved and exceeded

Explanatory Remarks

Strategic Goal 2: To have adequate infrastructure and systems in place to increase and provide effective services to students

2 965

3 115

(i) NSFAS bursaries

1.3.1. Number of Qualifying students
obtaining financial assistance (n)

Strategic Objective 1.3.: Effectively manage bursary administration system

1.2.2. % Funded NC(V) L4 students
obtaining qualification within
stipulated time

1.2.1. % Throughput rate in:
• NC(V) Level 4
• N3
• N6

32

5

11

Annual target exceeded

65

10

2.3.2. Number of support and
management staff professionally
developed. Focused intervention
on the following strategic areas:
compliance with PFMA, GRAP,
SCM, CET, PSR) (n)

2.3.3. Number of TVET lecturers placed
in workplaces for specified
periods (n)
65

37

51

Annual target exceeded
Q1: 15 lecturers placed
Q2: 17 lecturers placed
Q3: 33 lecturers placed

Annual target not achieved
Q1: 3 Management Staff professionally developed.
Q2: 34 Staff professionally developed

Annual target not achieved
Q1: 5 Academic Support officers trained
Q2: 15 Academic Tutors, 14 Artisans trained
Q3: 17 Support staff trained

Strategic Goal 3: To develop partnerships and maintain good stakeholder relations to increase the number of students who are adequately prepared tobour

80

2.3.1. Number of lecturing staff
professionally developed.
Focused intervention on the
following strategic areas: WIL,
Artisan Development, Academic
Support (n)

Strategic Objective 2.3.: Improve staff capacity to effectively deliver college curriculum and manage college processes

2.2.1. HR policies, processes and
systems
are
operational,
compliant and regularly reviewed
and addressed

Strategic Objective 2.2.: Improve Human Resources processes
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2019 Planned
Target

2019 annual
Achievement
Explanatory Remarks

710
30
0

2

8

2

1

2

15

3.1.1. Number of beneficial and
functional college partnerships
(n)

3.1.2. Number of new signed
agreements (n)

(i) Other colleges

(ii) Public entities and state departments

(iii) SETAs

(iv) Private business & industry

(v) International

(vi) Schools

(v) Donors

14

2

4

4

14

6

0

44

740

Annual target not achieved
Q2: ABSA, Cape Book & College Supplies; W&R SETA
Q3: Bokomo Cereal, INSETA, Dwaggas, Thenga Holdings, Kliphoek Soutwerke, CASS Supplies,
Office National, Swartland Winery, Riebeek Kasteel
Q4: Duferco Steel, Oxford University Press

Annual target achieved

Annual target exceeded
Q3: Attendance of CAPA Conference in Kigali, Rwanda; Attendance of WorldSkills Competition in Russia
as Observer;
Participation in French Exchange Programme;
Attendance of Workshop in South Korea

Annual target exceeded
Q2: The Water Academy (Training), Swift Academy (Training), Saldanha Steel (Training), Lesedi Engineering
(Training)

Annual target exceeded
Q1: CATHSETA (Bursaries), MQA (Staff training), CHIETA (Strategic Project: Maths and Science Support),
CETA (Training)
Q2: W&RSETA (Bursaries), AGRISETA (Training), CETA (Training)
Q3: INSETA (Bursaries), W&R SETA (Bursaries), MERSETA (Apprenticeships), HWSETA (Lecturer
Development, CHIETA (Lecturer Development)
Q4: W&R SETA (Bursaries), MERSETA (Training)

Annual target exceeded
Q1: NARYSEC (Training), WCED (Training), Cape Nature (Training)
Q2: NARYSEC (Training)
Q3: NARYSEC (Training)
Q4: MOT

Not applicable for year

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

Strategic Objective 3.1.: Facilitate, strengthen and maintain partnerships with industry, government departments, local municipalities, local higher education institutions both
local and international, community organisations and donors

Performance Indicators
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Retain contact with 60% of the
alumni

3.2.4.
60%

300
80%

310

9

319

1 577

1 582

3 478

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

Annual target not achieved. Funding for exit placement not sufficient to meet demand.

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

Annual target exceeded

2019 Planned
Target

2019 annual
Achievement

Explanatory Remarks

100%
16

4.1.1. % Compliance to governance
standards

4.1.2. Number of Council members
trained in corporate governance
0

100%

New college council appointed. Training scheduled for 2020

Annual target achieved

Strategic Objective 4.1.: Ensure that College Council is effective in its governance and performance management of college management and staff

Performance Indicators

Strategic Goal 4: To ensure continuous business excellence in terms of good corporate governance and effective management of all college resources as well as information
and data reporting

Number of TVET graduates
tracked and traced (n)

3.2.3.

5

400

Number of TVET graduates
placed into Higher Education
programmes (n)

(iii) On Exit

3.2.2.

1 600

(ii) Workplace-based experience (WBE)

2 700

700

Number of TVET students
placed in workplaces/industry
for specified periods for work
exposure, experiential learning
and/or certification purposes (n)

(i) Workplace exposure (WE)

3.2.1.

Strategic Objective 3.2.: Improve student employability by providing increased workplace-based learning opportunities
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15

100%

1
3

4.1.4. Number of Policies, processes
and procedures continuously
reviewed,
improved
and
implemented (n)

4.1.5. % Compliance with national
policy of college examination
centres conducting examinations
and assessments

4.1.6. Number of unqualified audits or
assessments (AG) (n)

4.1.7. Number of audits or assessments
(SABS, Enrolment and Exams)
(n)
3

1

100%

23

100%

Annual target achieved. Re-certification of the ISO 9001:2015 International Standard

Annual target achieved

Annual target achieved

Annual target exceeded

Annual target achieved

70%

70%

35%

5%

100%

100%

Annual target achieved

Annual target exceeded. Increased funding opportunities obtained.

Annual target achieved

Annual target achieved

Annual target achieved

2019 Planned
Target

2019 annual
Achievement

4
4

5.1.1. Number of Accurate M & E
Annual reports submitted (n)

5.1.2. M & E information is used to
address gaps in capacity and
practices
4

4

Annual target achieved

Annual target achieved

Strategic Objective 5.1.: Implement Monitoring and Evaluation (M & E) processes

Performance Indicators

Explanatory Remarks

Strategic Goal 5: To monitor and evaluate all college processes in terms of the framework for TVET college performance and report quarterly in this regard

4.3.1. % Satisfaction rating

Strategic Objective 4.3.: Ensure Service Delivery

5%
10%

4.2.4. % financial growth

100%

100%

4.2.3. % Debt collection (increase)

4.2.2. % Assets managed

4.2.1. % Financial policy controls
implemented

Strategic Objective 4.2.: Effective management systems generate outputs that meet compliance standards

100%

4.1.3. % Compliance to policies and
regulations applicable to the
TVET College sector

10.3
no

College Achievement in terms of Expected Outcomes
sub OUTCOME Indicators

1

Headcount enrolment (n)

2

Certification rate (%)
NC(V) L4
N3 &
N6 (%)

3

Compliance with national policy of
college examination centres conducting
examinations and assessments (%)

4

Throughput rate (%)
NC(V) L4
N3 &
N6 (%)

5

Students accommodated in public
TVET college accommodation (n)

6

Qualifying TVET students obtaining
financial assistance (n)

7
8

2019 National
Target

2019
Target

2019
Achievement

Explanatory
Remarks
Planned target
exceeded
2018 has seen, WCC
maintaining the NC(V)
enrolment numbers,
and an improved pass
rate NATED N4 – N6
has led to an increased
enrolment.

1 238 000

11 437

12 501

NC(V) L4: 60%

50%

63.92%

N3: 45%

66%

57.63%

N6: 60%

66%

62.03%

100%

100%

100%

NC(V) L4: 65%

20%

30.27%

N3: 65%

40%

44%

N6: 65%

40%

56%

1 140

1 140

Planned target
achieved
Planned target
exceeded. Increased
funding allocated from
NSFAS

1 000 000

3 115

6 851

Funded NC(V) L4 students obtaining
qualification within stipulated time (%)

60%

40%

30.27%

Compliance to governance standards
(%)

100%

100%

100%

9

TVET lecturers placed in workplaces
for specified periods (n)

10

65

10

TVET students placed in workplaces/
industry for specified periods for work
exposure, experiential learning and/or
certification purposes (n)

2 700

3 478

Planned target
achieved
Planned target not
achieved
Planned target not
achieved
Planned target
achieved
Planned target
exceeded
Planned target
exceeded
Planned target
exceeded

Planned target not
achieved
Planned target
achieved
Planned target
exceeded. Additional
funding received from
SETAs for placement
opportunities
Planned target
achieved

11

Students completing artisan-related
programmes (n)

520

789

Planned target
exceeded. Additional
funding received from
SETAs for placement
opportunities

12

TVET students completed
related programmes (n)

30

30

Planned target
achieved

13

TVET students enrolled in foundation or
bridging programmes (n)

Increasing
with 5 000 a
year

100

88

Planned target not
achieved

14

Success rate in foundation or bridging
programmes (%)

50%

65%

100%

artisan

36

Planned target
exceeded

10.4

Strategy to deal with underperformance

Our strategy is as follows:
•

To improve Academic Performance: The results will be analysed and the underperforming subjects
identified. An Improvement Plan will be drafted. Staff will be taken through the Improvement Plan,
supported and monitoring the implementation will follow. Buy in from all stakeholders including the SRC
must be obtained.
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
These reports and statements comprise the annual financial statements presented for audit:
Page(s)

Index
General Information

3

Council's Responsibilities and Approval

4

Report by the Auditor-General

5-9

Statement of Financial Position

10

Statement of Financial Performance

11

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

12

Cash Flow Statement

13

Accounting Policies

14-38

Notes to the Financial Statements

39-67

Supplementary schedule on the CIEG grant

68

ABBREVIATIONS
AG

Auditor-General

ASB

Accounting Standards Board

CIEG

Capital Infrastructure Efficiency Grant

COS / CoS

Centre of Specialisation

DHET

Department of Higher Education and Training

GRAP

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

NSF

National Skills Fund

NSFAS
SARS
VAT
CET Act

National Student Financial Aid Scheme
South African Revenue Services
Value Added Tax
CET Act No.16 of 2006, as amended

WCC

West Coast College
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
GENERAL INFORMATION
Controlling entity

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

Financial Statements relate to

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

Domicile, legal form and jurisdiction

The College is a Public Technical and Vocational Education and
Training College, constituted in terms of the Continuing Education and
Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended (CET Act), and operates
from a Central Office in Malmesbury with Campuses in the following
locations: Malmesbury, Atlantis, Citrusdal, Vredenburg and Vredendal.

Nature of business and principal activities

To provide continuing education and training to registered students for
all learning and training programmes leading to qualifications or part
qualifications at levels 1 to 4 of the National Qualifications Framework.

Outgoing Councillors active until 31 March 2019

Prof A Redlinghuis - Chairperson
Ms Z Zantsi - Vice Chairperson
Ms E du Plessis
Ms J Stoffels
Dr K Jacobs
Mr H Kok
Mr C Maans
Prof F Sonn
Mr K Nangle
Mr P Nkuzo
Mr T Obdrabu
Mr L Mbulawa
Ms B Mtini - Chairperson
Mr D Fredericks - Vice Chairperson
Prof M Ralarala
Dr N Nduna
Prof E Ruhode
Prof J Kioko
Ms N Tyandela
Adv M Mdludlu
Mr H Kok
Mr T Mkhwanazi
Mr L Mbulawa
Ms N Dapula
Mr A Tshona
Mr M Matya
Mr M Ndinwa (SRC President)
Ms S Feni (SRC Deputy President)
Mr L Mbulawa
Ms N Miggel
Ms ND Dapula
Ms R Van Dyk
Mr A Swartbooi (Acting in 2019, now appointed)

New Councillors

Internal staff presented on Council

Key Management

Principal

Mr L Mbulawa

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Ms N Miggel

Registered office

2 Loedolf St, Malmesbury, 7299

Business address

2 Loedolf St, Malmesbury, 7299

Postal address

PO Box 935, Malmesbury, 7299

Bankers

ABSA Limited

Auditors

Auditor-General (SA)
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WEST COAST
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
Council's Responsibilities and Approval
The council is required by the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended, to maintain adequate accounting
records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It
is the responsibility of council to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the College as at the end of the
financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with GRAP. The Auditor-General was
engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records, related
data and relevant parties.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of GRAP including any interpretations, guidelines and
directives issued by the ASB and in the manner required by the Minister of Higher Education, Science and Technology.
The financial statements are based on appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
Council acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the College and places
considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment, which includes the safeguarding of assets and compliance with
relevant legislation. To enable the council to meet these responsibilities, the council sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing
risk in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting and other procedures, and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the College and employees and management are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the college's
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the college is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the college. While operating risk cannot be fully
eliminated, the College endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are
applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The council accepts its responsibility to ensure that the College is managed in a responsible manner, considering the interest of all
stakeholders, including the DHET, unions, employees, students, local communities and creditors. Responsible management entails, inter
alia, compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, including risk management.
The council noted the unqualified opinion of the Auditor-General in respect of the 2018 Annual Financial Statements. The council is of the
view, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance
that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements and that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.
The council has reviewed the College’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2020 and, in the light of this review and the current
financial position, it is satisfied that the College has, or has access to, adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.
South Africa is facing unprecedented health and economic challenges as a result of the negative impact of COVID-19 which was declared a
global pandemic by the World Health Organization (WHO) around February 2020. President Cyril Ramaphosa issued a directive that,
interalia, declared South Africa to be in a National State of Disaster, in terms of the Disaster Management Act, 57 of 2002. The country was
thus placed under total lockdown effective mid-night of the 26th March 2020 for an initial 21 days expiring on the 16th April 2020, causing
devastating economic consequences. The state of health of many South Africans and the economy at large have been at the receiving end
of this pandemic and many lives lost. Extension of the lockdown period has since been made in phases, intended to gradually normalise
society in due course. The impact of these events, which rose after the reporting date, will be far reaching. The college was unable to
reasonably determine the extent of the expected loss this pandemic may cause. Council has however found it necessary to bring this matter
to the attention of all users of these financial statements. It is not envisaged that these events will impact the assumption of going concern
The College is dependent on the DHET for continued funding of operations in line with the annual DHET programme funding allocation. The
financial statements are prepared on the basis that the College is a going concern and that the DHET has neither the intention nor the need
to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the College's operations.
The Auditor-General is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the College's financial statements and his report is
presented with these financial statements.
The financial statements set out on page 10 to 67 were approved by the council representative on 29 August 2020 and were signed on its
behalf by:

_______________________
B Mtini
WCC Council Chairperson
29 August 2020
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Report of the auditor-general to the minister of Higher Education,
Science and Innovation and the council of West Coast Technical and
Vocational Education and Training College
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
1. I have audited the financial statements of the West Coast Technical and Vocational Education
and Training (TVET) College, set out on pages 10 to 67, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of financial performance, the
statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, as
well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.
2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the West Coast TVET College as at 31 December 2019, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the South African
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of Grap) and the
requirements of the Continuing Education and Training Act 16 of 2006 (Ceta).

Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.
4. I am independent of the college in accordance with section 290 and 291 of the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants, and
parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International code of
ethics for professional accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA
codes), as well as the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have
fulfilled my other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters
6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Restatement of corresponding figures
7. As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for the 31
December 2018 financial year-end were restated as a result of errors discovered during 2019
in the financial statements of the college as at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2019.
5
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Material impairments
8. As disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements, a material impairment provision to the
amount of R53 670 414 (2018: R28 793 650) had been made for trade and other receivables,
amounting to R82 898 820 as at 31 December 2019 (2018: R60 206 574).
Uncertainty relating to the future outcome of exceptional litigation or regulatory action
9. With reference to note 29 to the financial statements, the college is the defendant in various
lawsuits. The college is opposing these claims based on legal advice. The ultimate outcome of
the matters could not be determined and no provision for any liability that may result was made
in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting date – Covid-19 virus pandemic
10. As disclosed in note 31 of the annual financial statements, South Africa is facing
unprecedented health and economic challenges as a result of the negative impact of the Covid19 pandemic, which was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization (WHO)
around February 2020. President Cyril Ramaphosa issued a directive that, inter alia, declared a
national state of disaster in terms of the Disaster Management Act 57 of 2002. The country was
thus placed under total lockdown, effective from midnight of 26 of March 2020, with devastating
economic consequences. The health of many South Africans and of the economy at large have
been significantly affected by this pandemic, and many lives have been lost. Extension of the
lockdown period has since been made in phases, intended to gradually normalise society in
due course. The college was unable to reasonably determine the extent of the expected loss
this pandemic may cause. Management has, however, found it necessary to bring this matter
to the attention of all users of these financial statements. It is not envisaged that these events
will impact the assumption of going concern.

Responsibilities of council for the financial statements
11. The council, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with SA Standards of Grap and the
requirements of Ceta, and for such internal control as the council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
12. In preparing the financial statements, the council is responsible for assessing the West Coast
TVET College’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the college or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
13. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
6
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auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
14. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report
15. The college is not required to prepare a report on its performance against predetermined
objectives as it does not fall within the ambit of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999
(PFMA) and such reporting is also not required in terms of the Ceta.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
16. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the
college with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but
not to gather evidence to express assurance.
17. I did not raise material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key legislation set
out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Other information
18. The council and the principal of West Coast TVET College is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
which includes the chairperson of the council’s report and the audit committee’s report. The
other information does not include the financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.
19. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on compliance with legislation do not cover
the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
20. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
21. If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement in this
other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

7
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Internal control deficiencies
22. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and compliance
with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on
it. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

Cape Town
4 September 2020

8
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the
procedures performed on the college’s compliance with respect to the selected subject
matters.

Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this
auditor’s report, I also:
identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the college’s internal control
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council
conclude on the appropriateness of the college’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the West Coast TVET College’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information
available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the college to cease continuing as a going concern
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
3. I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that I identify during my audit.
4. I also confirm to the council that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats, or safeguards applied.

9
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
Actual
2019
Note
R

2018
Restated
R

ASSETS
Current Assets
Inventories
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

2
3
4
5

207 242 635
13 967 144
29 228 405
29 429 080
134 618 006

140 185 560
2 582 793
31 412 923
11 059 919
95 129 924

6

271 676 665
271 676 665

254 044 580
254 044 580

478 919 299

394 230 140

33 664 870
528 337

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Provisions

7

43 946 805
631 232

Payables from Exchange Transactions
Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
Operating Lease Liabilities
Finance lease

8
9
10
11

36 379 795
6 677 829
83 383
174 566

22 552 107
10 452 040
132 386
-

11

720 673
720 673

-

44 667 478

33 664 870

Total Assets less Liabilities

434 251 821

360 565 270

NET ASSETS
Accumulated Surplus

434 251 821
434 251 821

360 565 270
360 565 270

478 919 299

394 230 140

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease
Total Liabilities

12

Total of Net Assets and Liabilities
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
Actual
2019
Note

2018
Restated

R

R

REVENUE
Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
Government Grants and Subsidies Received

13

206 929 050

163 209 610

Public Contributions and Donations

14

14 000

933 195

15

153 844 908

107 931 569

Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Tuition and Related Fees

N/A

Rental of Facilities and Equipment

16

Interest Earned

N/A

Sale Of Goods And Rendering of Services

17

Other Revenue
Total Revenue

24 500

45 420

7 976 097

3 571 085

77 194

171 790

1 210 541

16 006 347

370 076 290

291 869 016

EXPENDITURE
18

138 335 975

122 265 879

Depreciation and Amortisation

N/A

11 443 174

13 051 880

External Audit Fees

N/A

2 377 164

2 399 094

Impairment Losses

19

25 403 329

21 910 580

Marketing Expenses

N/A

1 192 767

1 366 216

20

1 889 058

2 143 514

Employee Related Costs

Printing And Stationery
Finance Costs

N/A

118 327

13 328

Books and Learning Materials

N/A

9 544 055

8 982 105

Rental of Buildings

N/A

3 694 995

3 024 869

License Fees

N/A

3 391 183

1 714 804

Consumables

N/A

6 215 926

5 559 704

21

7 844 983

7 512 326

Students Residents Meals

N/A

14 400 003

8 236 728

Security

N/A

4 444 443

2 582 179

Travel And Accommodation

N/A

37 332 626

27 213 869

Telephone And Internet

N/A

1 536 537

1 810 175

22

6 401 451

3 310 942

Municipal Services

Contracted Services
Consulting Fees

N/A

1 154 295

1 832 855

General Expenses
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

23
N/A

19 541 463
127 986

10 735 525
-

296 389 739

245 666 574

73 686 550

46 202 442

Total Expenditure

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
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WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
Total for
Accumulated
Surplus/(Deficit)
Account
R

Description

2018
Balance at 31 December 2017
Correction of Error (Note 24)
Restated Balance
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year
Balance at 31 December 2018
2019
Restated Balance
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year
Balance at 31 December 2019

Page 12
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Total
R

311 871 250
2 491 578
314 362 828

311 871 250
2 491 578
314 362 828

46 202 442
360 565 270
-

46 202 442
360 565 270
-

360 565 271

360 565 271

73 686 551
434 251 821
-

73 686 551
434 251 821
-

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
2019
Note
R

2018
Restated
R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Government Grant and Subsidies
Public Contributions and Donations
Tuition and Related Fees
Interest Received
Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services
Other Receipts

13
14
15
16
N/A
17

81 660 732
14 000
131 152 663
7 976 097
77 194
1 235 041

91 438 570
76 402 631
3 601 684
171 790
16 051 764

Payments
Employee Related Costs
Interest Paid
Suppliers Paid
Other Payments

18
N/A
23
23

(35 108 134)
(118 327)
(99 025 151)
(19 541 463)

(26 241 825)
(13 328)
(70 901 289)
(10 735 525)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

25

68 322 651

79 774 472

6
6

(29 729 809)
-

(8 606 253)
-

(29 729 809)

(8 606 253)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
11
11

Proceeds from Borrowings
Repayment of Borrowings
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

5
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1 047 315
(152 077)

-

895 239

-

39 488 082

71 168 219

0.00
95 129 924
134 618 006

0.00
23 961 705
95 129 924

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
1.00 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.01 Presentation of Financial Statements and Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in the manner prescribed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training
in terms of the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, as amended.
These financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and are in
accordance with the historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.
In the absence of an approved and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material
transactions, events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3
as read with Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or
permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
A summary of the significant accounting policies are disclosed below.
The presentation and classification and these accounting policies are consistent with the previous year,
except for the changes set out in note 24.
1.02 Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the
College.
1.03 Going concern assumption
Management and council have made the assessment that the entity is a going concern and the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
1.04 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The use of judgement, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing financial
statements. These judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in the financial
statements. Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the relevant asset or liability in future periods.
Judgements
In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that
may have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Programme funding
In terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms for TVET Colleges, the Colleges are funded (Programme
Funding) based on their Full Time Equivalent (FTE) student numbers. Therefore, in terms of the CET Act
and the Funding Norms, a College receives Programme Funding to enrol and train a certain number of
students for the year and that Programme Funding accrues to the College in terms of the CET Act and the
Funding Norms and the accrual is separate and independent from how the funds are distributed to the
College. The full amount of allocated Programme Funding therefore has to be paid to the College by
DHET, irrespective of how it is paid. DHET settles its liability for Programme Funding towards the College
in part by paying the employment cost of the College employees employed by DHET, via Persal. The
remaining liability towards the College is settled in cash.
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The Funding norms that is currently applicable to TVET Colleges was Gazetted on 15 May 2015 and
paragraph 117 contains provisions which may cause conditions as defined in GRAP 23 to exist under
certain circumstances. These conditions would be applicable to the portion of the Programme Funding
which is withheld to pay for employee cost of Persal employees deployed at the College. However, DHET
has indicated that the intention of the Funding Norms is not to impose conditions which may be introduced
by paragraph 117 and that the intention is that a College’s Programme Funding accrues to it in total.
Therefore, any difference between the amount withheld for paying Persal salaries and the amount that is
eventually used to pay for Persal salaries, is automatically payable to Colleges. DHET has aligned its
systems to facilitate the payment of these amounts to Colleges.
Paragraph 103 of the Funding Norms provides for a claw back to be implemented if a College’s enrolment
figures were less than what was planned for and funded in the previous year. The effect of this paragraph
is that it introduces a condition as defined in GRAP 23, which is that a portion of the Programme Funding
will have to be repaid if a College enrols less than 97% of the planned and funded enrolment target for the
year. However, DHET has indicated that they do not currently have sufficient confidence in the correctness
of the enrolment figures to be able to implement this claw back and that the Programme Funding Grant is
therefore an unconditional grant at the moment.
The substance over form nature of the Programme Funding for a College is therefore that it accrues to the
College, in full and without any conditions, in the financial year of the College during which the enrolment
and training of students occur. The date on which it accrues is 1 January of the relevant year, or the date
on which the final grant amount is communicated to the College, whichever is later. The full Programme
Funding allocation to the College is therefore recognised as revenue in the College's financial year.
The transactions and amounts are disclosed in Note 13.
DHET management fee
The College's staff consists of two groups:
i) Employees and management staff appointed on Persal
ii) Employees appointed on the College payroll
The management and other staff who are stationed at a College (College’s staff) and are paid through
Persal are employed by DHET on DHET’s Persal payroll. Therefore in terms of labour legislation they are
DHET employees and not College employees. However, these employees are stationed permanently and
exclusively at the College and are also subject to the governance and management oversight of the Council
of the College and the intention is for the College to operate with relative autonomy. The employees are
therefore substantively under the operational control of the College, with DHET performing and supporting
certain HR related functions, e.g. administering the payroll and appointment, performance management,
termination and disciplinary processes.

In terms of the CET Act and the Funding Norms for TVET Colleges, the Colleges are funded (Programme
Funding) based on their Full Time Equivalent (FTE) student numbers. Therefore, in terms of the CET Act
and the Funding Norms, a College receives Programme Funding to enrol and train a certain number of
students for the year and that Programme Funding accrues to the College in terms of the CET Act and the
Funding Norms and the accrual is separate and independent from how the funds are distributed to the
College. The full amount of allocated Programme Funding therefore has to be paid to the College by
DHET, irrespective of how it is paid. DHET settles its liability for Programme Funding towards the College
in part by paying the employment cost of the College employees employed by DHET, via Persal. The
remaining liability towards the College is settled in cash.

What happens, in layman’s terms, is that DHET employs the College’s management and other staff for it,
performs certain HR related functions for the College and uses the College’s funds to pay the salaries of the
College staff in DHET’s employment.
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There is therefore a College expense (outflow of College economic resources) which has to be accounted
for by a College and the questions that remain are how that expense should be classified and measured.
With respect to the classification, the nature of the expense is clearly related to employee cost, but is not
classified as employee cost, because the College is not the employer in terms of labour and related
legislation. The expense is therefore classified as a DHET management fee expense in the hands of a
College. On the face of the Statement of Financial Performance, it is aggregated with the College’s
Employee cost expense and it is disclosed separately in the notes.
With respect to the measurement of the expense, DHET settles the liability for Programme Funding towards
the College, by assuming an employee cost liability towards the College’s employees employed by DHET
and paid via Persal. The cost or value of the expense for the College is therefore the same as the amount
by which the liability that DHET owes to the College decreases as a result of DHET assuming the employee
cost liability towards the College employees. This is inclusive of all short and long term employee benefits,
e.g. leave and bonus accruals, capped leave and long service awards.
The transactions and amounts are disclosed in Note 18.
Campuses or other property used and controlled, but not owned by the College
Certain campuses and other property are used by the College and are not registered in the name of the
College. The lack of legal ownership could affect whether or not the college has control over the campus.
Where, inter alia, control exists, the campus in question is recognised, measured and included in the
financial statements as either property, plant and equipment (campuses or other property) or investment
property (other property) in terms of the definition and recognition criteria of an asset as per the Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements and the definition of Property, Plant and
Equipment in GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment or Investment Property in GRAP 16 Investment
Property.
Classification of land and buildings as property, plant and equipment or investment property
Judgement is needed to determine whether a property qualifies as investment property. The College
developed the following criteria so that it can exercise that judgement consistently in accordance with the
definition of investment property:
Examples:
- The purpose for which the property is used i.e. if for education purposes then the property is not regarded
as an investment property.
- If the property is held for the purpose of generating rental income or to appreciate in value, then the
property is regarded as an investment property
- If other assets used in conjunction with the property to provide education, then the property is not regarded
as an investment property
- Land held for a currently undetermined future use is regarded as investment property.
The nature / type of properties classified as held for strategic purposes are as follows:
Classification of non-current, non-financial assets as cash-generating or non-cash-generating
Judgement is needed to determine whether an asset is cash-generating or non cash-generating. The
College developed the following criteria so that it can exercise that judgement consistently in accordance
with the definitions:
Example:
- The purpose for which the asset was acquired, i.e. if for education purposes at no consideration (no fees)
then the asset is regarded as non cash-generating asset. If to earn positive cash flows on a commercial
basis, then the asset is regarded as cash-generating.
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Estimates
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management,
assumptions, and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These
estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed in
the period of the review and applied prospectively.
In the process of applying the College’s accounting policies the following estimates, were made:
Debt impairment
The College assesses its financial assets for impairment at the end of each financial year. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the College makes judgements as to
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a financial asset.
The impairment is considered first for individually significant financial assets and then calculated on a
portfolio basis for individually insignificant financial assets, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for
national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that
correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to items in the portfolio and
scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of financial assets impaired.
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory
In making an allowance to write inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value, management
has made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is
included in the surplus or deficit. For inventory consumed in the supply of services for no or nominal charge,
management has made an estimate of the current replacement cost of such inventory and as appropriate
have reduced the carrying amount accordingly.
Refer to Note 2 for the carrying amounts of inventories affected.
Non-financial asset Impairment
In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on
the use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case of cashgenerating assets). For non-cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated
replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of the asset, depending on the nature of the impairment
and the availability of information.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of non-financial assets impaired.
Provisions
Provisions are measured at the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the
obligation. In the process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required in future to
settle the provision management considers the weighted average probability of the potential outcomes of
the provisions raised. This measurement entails determining what the different potential outcomes are for a
provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. Management then assigns a
weighting factor to each of these outcomes based on the probability that the outcome will materialise in
future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and the factored outcomes are then
added together to arrive at the weighted average value of the provisions.
Refer to Note 7 for the provisions affected.
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Useful lives and residual values of assets; depreciation and amortisation
The College's management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of all non-current,
non-financial assets. These estimates are based on industry norms and then adjusted to be college
specific. Management determines at reporting date whether there are any indications that the College's
expectations of useful lives or residual values have changed from previous estimates. Where indications
exist the expected useful lives or residual values are revised accordingly.
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets respectively are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the
underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of
the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future use
and the college’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful
life. In evaluating how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value
management considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.
Generally, depreciation is accrued over the useful lives of assets on a straight-line basis.

Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of non-financial assets affected.
Effective interest rate
The College uses an appropriate interest rate, taking into account guidance provided in GRAP, and
applying professional judgement to the specific circumstances, to discount future cash flows, to the present
value of the item being discounted.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of financial assets affected.
Fair value determination of properties (excluding heritage assets)
In determining the fair value of investment property (and / or property, plant and equipment ) donated or
acquired for no consideration, the College applies a valuation methodology to determine the fair value of the
properties based on any one of, or a combination of the following factors:
- The market related selling price of the property; or
- The market related rental that can be earned for the property; or
- The market related selling price of similar properties in the area; or
- The rentals currently or previously earned by the property.
Where the above information is not available or reliably determinable the College determines an
approximation of fair-value by estimating the Depreciated Replacement Cost of the asset.
Refer to the respective notes for the carrying amounts of properties affected.
1.05 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets and work-inprogress assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or
for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period.
Recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and
- the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment including work-in-progress is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to
bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of
acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
assets, or a combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair
value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying
amount of the asset(s) given up.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the College is obligated to incur
such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes
other than the production of inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the
item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are
included in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only
be used in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment
and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of
property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are
derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment, except for work-in progress assets, are depreciated on the straight line basis
over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value. Refer below for the estimated useful lives:
Class
Useful Life Range in Years
Land
Indefinite Life
Buildings
50
Other Assets
Vehicles
5-14
Furniture and Fittings
5-14
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
5-14
Office Equipment
5-14
Computer Equipment
3-14
Bulk Electricity Supply
10-50
Paving
10-30
Audiovisual
5-14
Kitchen equipment
5-14
At reporting date it is assessed whether there are any indications that the College's expectations of useful
lives or residual values have changed from previous estimates. Where indications exist the expected useful
lives or residual values are revised accordingly.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item is depreciated separately.
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The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.
Derecognition
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are
no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in
surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the item.
Work-in-progress is derecognised as work-in-progress assets and transferred to the relevant assets,
usually infrastructure assets, when the construction of these assets are complete and ready to be used.
Deemed cost
When the College acquired an asset prior the date of adopting the Standards of GRAP or in a transfer of
functions between entities under common control or in a merger where the transferor or combining entity did
not apply the Standards of GRAP on the transfer or merger date and when information about the historical
cost are not available, the acquisition cost is measured using a surrogate value (deemed cost) at the date
the college adopted the Standards of GRAP, or the transfer or merger date (the measurement date).
Deemed cost is determined as the fair value of an asset at the measurement date.
Biological assets that do not form part of an agricultural activity
Where a biological asset does not form part of an agricultural activity, the biological asset is classified as
part of property, plant and equipment and measured accordingly.
1.06 Financial instruments
The College has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of
the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:
Class
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Category
Financial asset at amortised cost
Financial asset at amortised cost

The College has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of
the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:
Class
Trade and other payables

Category
Financial liability at cost

Initial recognition
The College recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The College measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs
(for financial instruments at amortised cost) that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial instrument.
The College first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial
recognition, the college analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each
component separately. The College accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is:
- a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements, where it is the issuer of the loan; or
- non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.
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Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The College measures all financial instruments after initial recognition as follows:
- Financial instruments at fair value: Fair-value at reporting date
- Financial instruments at amortised cost: Amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment losses.
- Financial instruments at cost. Cost, less any impairment losses.
Fair value measurement considerations
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument
is not active, the entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a
valuation technique is to establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in
an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available,
reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants
to price the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices
obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique
makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates
all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted
economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the valuation
technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same
instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.
The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.
Reclassification
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
- combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
- an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.
Where the College cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been
separated from a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the
combined instrument at fair value. This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or
cost to fair value.
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair
value, the College reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that
fair value is no longer available becomes the cost.
If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was
previously not available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the
College reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair
value is recognised in surplus or deficit.
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised
in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the
amortisation process.
Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets
The College assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Page 21

59

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account (debt impairment provision). The amount of
the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual
interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. The entity derecognises a financial
asset only when:
- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
- the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial;
or
- the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without
needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and
those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and
obligations are measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received
and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the
transfer.
If the College transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and
retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing
liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the College
adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation is recognised at its
fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a
servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the
college obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the
college recognise the new financial asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition
in its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those
parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that
continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the College has retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the College continue to recognise the transferred asset in its
entirety and recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the college
recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither
the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.
Financial liabilities
The College removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial
position when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled,
expires or waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms
is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is
recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is
accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised a new financial
liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by
another college by way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of
GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue
or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised
as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Distributions to holders of residual interests are debited by the entity directly to net assets, net of any related
income tax benefit [where applicable]. Transaction costs incurred on residual interests is accounted for as a
deduction from net assets, net of any related income tax benefit [where applicable].
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the College currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the College does not
offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.07 Statutory receivables
Funding receivable from DHET arise from non-contracted arrangements as the basis for DHET funding is
found in the Continuing Education and Training Act (CET Act) and the The National Norms and Standards
for Funding Technical and Vocational Education and Training Colleges. Cash receivable from DHET as part
of programme funding is regarded as a "statutory receivable".
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The statutory receivable is initially measured at the transaction amount and subsequently measured using
the cost-method, which changes the initial measurement to reflect any impairment or amounts
derecognised. An explanation on when the DHET programme funding and any related receivables or
payables are recorded is provided in note 1.04 and 1.17.
The statutory receivable is included in Other receivables from non-exchange transactions. Refer to note 4.
1.08 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and building elements, the College assesses the classification of each
element separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts
equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the rate implicit in
the lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease
revenue.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of
financial performance.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised
as an operating lease asset or liability.
1.09 Inventories
Inventories are assets:
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process;
- in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services;
- held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or
- in the process of production for sale or distribution.
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Recognition and measurement
Inventories are recognised as an asset if:
- it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and
- the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange
transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories held for commercial purposes are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for:
- distribution through a non-exchange transaction; or
- consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and
segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out cost formula. The same cost formula is used
for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the College.
Recognition as an expense
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are
recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
1.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
i) cash;
ii) cash in current bank accounts;
iii) cash in interest bearing bank accounts or money market accounts where the funds are available
immediately.
1.11 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets managed by the College with the primary objective of generating
a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profitorientated college, it generates a commercial return.
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Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through
depreciation (amortisation).
Identification
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.
The College assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the College also tests a cash-generating
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use
for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test
is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current
reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting
period.
Value in use
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
be derived from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
When estimating the value in use of an asset, the College estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to
be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the College applies the
appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.
Basis for estimates of future cash flows
In measuring value in use the entity:
- base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best
estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset.
Greater weight is given to external evidence;
- base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes any
estimated future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or from improving or
enhancing the asset's performance. Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum
period of five years, unless a longer period can be justified; and
- estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by
extrapolating the projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the longterm average growth rate for the
- products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used, unless a higher rate can be justified.
Composition of estimates of future cash flows
Estimates of future cash flows include:
- projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset;
- projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use
of the asset (including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis, to the asset; and
- net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.
Estimates of future cash flows exclude:
- cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
- income tax receipts or payments.
The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful
life is the amount that the entity expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal.
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Discount rate
The discount rate is a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money,
represented by the current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.
Recognition and measurement (individual asset)
If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cashgenerating asset to which it relates, the College recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement
in the Standard of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its
residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Cash-generating units
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the
individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the College
determines the recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's
cash-generating unit).
If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of
assets is identified as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash
inflows generated by any asset or cash- generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the entity
use management's best estimate of future price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in
estimating:
- the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
- the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units
that are affected by the internal transfer pricing.
Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets,
unless a change is justified.
The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is determined.
An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cashgenerating assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on individual assets.
In allocating an impairment loss, the College does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the
highest of:
- its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
- its value in use (if determinable); and
- zero
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other cash-generating assets of the unit.
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying
amount of that non- cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.
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Reversal of impairment loss
The College assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a
reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation
or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the
unit pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as
reversals of impairment losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to
a non-cash-generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit.
In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is
not increased above the lower of:
- its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
- the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
Redesignation
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a noncash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a
redesignation is appropriate.
1.12 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profitorientated entity, it generates a commercial return.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. Refer to note 1.05 for criteria
developed to distinguish non cash-generating assets from cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through
depreciation (amortisation).
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a
revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
The College assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable service amount
of the asset.
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Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the College also tests a non-cash-generating
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for
use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This
impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised
during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment before the end of the
current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets
remaining service potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using
the following approach:
Depreciated replacement cost approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the
depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the
asset’s gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset
may be replaced either through reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its
gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement
cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to
reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.
The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The
rationale is that the College would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be
replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features
which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that
have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the asset provides.
The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis thus
reflects the service potential required of the asset.
Restoration cost approach
Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The
present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated
restoration cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset
before impairment. The latter cost is determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower.
Service units approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost
of the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of
service units expected from the asset in its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the remaining
service potential of the asset before impairment is determined as the depreciated reproduction or
replacement cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment
loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cashgenerating asset to which it relates, the College recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement
in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Reversal of an impairment loss
The College assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
any such indication exists, the College estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service
amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset
attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a
revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cashgenerating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Redesignation
The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a noncash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a
redesignation is appropriate.
1.13 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by
employees.
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
- an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
- an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
When an employee has rendered service to the College during a reporting period, the College recognises
the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
- as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid
exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the College recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid
expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund; and
- as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an
asset.
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The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence
occurs. The College measures the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional
amount that the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date.
The College recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the
College has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the College has no
realistic alternative but to make the payments.
Termination benefits
The College recognises termination benefits as a liability and an expense when the college is demonstrably
committed to either:
i) terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or
ii) provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
The College is demonstrably committed to a termination when the college has a detailed formal plan for the
termination and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includes [as a minimum]:
i) the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;
ii) the termination benefits for each job classification or function; and
iii) the time at which the plan will be implemented.
Implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of time to complete implementation is such that
material changes to the plan are not likely.
Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using
an appropriate discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of money. The
currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with
the currency and estimated term of the benefit.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits
shall be based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.
DHET management fee
The remuneration of management and other personnel appointed by DHET on Persal and paid through
Persal using the College's funds is measured at the cost of the remuneration to DHET inclusive of leave,
bonus and other employee related accruals and/or provisions, as and when incurred by DHET. The related
expense is recognised as a DHET management fee expense as per note 18.
1.14 Provisions and contingencies
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.
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A contingent liability is:
- a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or
- a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Provisions are recognised when:
- the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; and
- a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the
College settles the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the
passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating deficits.
If the College has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when the College has a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and
- has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.
A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are
those that are both:
- necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
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- not associated with the ongoing activities of the College.
No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the College is committed
to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in College combinations that are recognised
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:
- the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
- the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in notes 29.
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires
judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
- financial difficulty of the debtor;
- defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
- breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term
and the ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
- a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that
impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.
Where a fee is received by the College for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on
loan commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the College considers that an outflow of economic
resources is probable, the College recognises the obligation at the higher of:
- the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and
- the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when
those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the college receives assets or services, or has liabilities
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services or
use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts
and volume rebates.
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Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
- the College has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
- the College retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
College; and
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at
the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions
are satisfied:
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
College;
- the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
- the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is
recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other
method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any
other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting
date.
Interest, royalties, dividends and tuition fees
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar
distributions is recognised when:
- It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity, and
- The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the College’s right to receive
payment has been established.
Tuition fees are recognised over the period of instruction.
1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
When the College receives an asset or a service as part of a non-exchange transaction and the definition
and recognition criteria of an asset is met, the College recognises the asset and initially measures it at its
fair value as at the date of acquisition.
When there are conditions on transferred assets or services received by the College which result therein
that the college has a present obligation on initial recognition, which meets the definition and recognition
criteria of a liability, the College recognises a corresponding liability, initially measured as the best estimate
of the amount required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.
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Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue,
except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
As the College satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources
from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability
recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets
recognised by the College.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the College recognises an asset, it also recognises
revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless
it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as
the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the
increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because a
condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
Programme funding
The full programme funding allocated to the College in terms of the CET Act, the Funding Norms and the
final grant letter received from the department is recognised in full in the College's financial year during
which the enrolment and training of students, to which the grant pertains, are performed by the College. It
is measured at the total amount allocated to the College by DHET, inclusive of both the part paid in cash
and the part paid via Persal as per note 13.
Transfers
Apart from Services in kind, which are only recognised as indicated below, the College recognises an asset
in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria
for recognition as an asset.
The College recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition
of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities
The College recognise revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the
definition of a liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability, provided that the debt forgiveness
does not satisfy the definition of a contribution from owners.
Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of debt forgiven.
Services in-kind
The College recognises services in-kind that are significant to its operations and/or service delivery
objectives as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.
If the services in-kind are not significant to the College’s operations and/or service delivery objectives
and/or do not satisfy the criteria for recognition, the nature and type of services in-kind received during the
reporting period is disclosed.
When the criteria for recognition are satisfied, services in-kind are measured on initial recognition at their
fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Fines
Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the
criteria for recognition as an asset.
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Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the entity.
Where the entity collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecting
entity.
Bequests
Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable
that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity, and the fair value of the assets
can be measured reliably.
Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind
Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that
the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be
measured reliably.
1.17 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.18 Comparative figures
When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended due to better
presentation and/or better understandability and/or comparability and/or due to the implementation of a new
or amended standard, prior period comparative amounts are reclassified. Where accounting errors have
been identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the
prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in
the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year
comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.19 Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. An asset arising from
development is recognised when:
- it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
- there is an intention to complete and use or sell it,
- there is an ability to use or sell it,
- it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential,
- there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the asset, and
- the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
1.20 Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or
joint control. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship, and not merely the legal form.
Significant influence may be exercised in several ways, usually by representation on the governing body but
also, for example, by participation in the policy-making process, material transactions between entities
within an economic entity, interchange of managerial personnel or dependence on technical information.
Significant influence may be gained by an ownership interest, statute or agreement or otherwise. With
regard to an ownership interest, significant influence is presumed in accordance with the definition
contained in the Standard of GRAP on Investments in Associates.
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
College, including those charged with the governance of the college in accordance with legislation, in
instances where they are required to perform such functions.
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Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the College.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are
disclosed.
1.21 Commitments
The College discloses commitments relating to each class of capital assets ( PPE, Investment properties,
Intangible assets, Biological assets and Heritage assets) recognized in the financial statements as well as
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:
- Not later than one year,
- Later than one year and not later than five years, and
- Later than five years.
1.22 Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can
be identified:
- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the
reporting date); and
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the
reporting date).
Reporting date means the date of the last day of the reporting period to which the financial statements
relate. The reporting date of the College is 31 December 2019.
The College adjusts the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the
reporting date. The College does not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect nonadjusting events after the reporting date.
1.23 New Standards and Interpretations
The following Standards of GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been approved by the Accounting
Standards Board, but will only become effective in future periods or have not been given an effective date
by the Minister of Finance. The College has not early-adopted any of these new Standards or amendments
thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in the development of accounting policies in accordance with
GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5:
Title of the standard and nature of impending changes in accounting policy and expected impact
GRAP 20 Related-party disclosures: This standard is effective from 1 April 2019. The entity has thus far
been required to apply IPSAS 20 and the impact of implementing GRAP 20 is therefore not expected to
have a significant effect on the future related party disclosures.
GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor: It is expected that there will be no impact. This
standard is effective from 1 April 2019.
GRAP 34 Separate Financial statements: This standard is effective from 1 April 2020. It is not expected
to have a significant impact on the entity's financial statements as the entity does not have investments in
controlled entitie, associates, or joint arrangements.
GRAP 35 Consolidated Financial statements: This standard is effective from 1 April 2020. This
standard is effective from 1 April 2020. It is not expected to have a significant impact on the entity's
financial statements as the entity does not have investments in controlled entitie, associates, or joint
arrangements.
GRAP 36 investments in associates and joint ventures: This standard is effective from 1 April 2020.
This standard is effective from 1 April 2020. It is not expected to have a significant impact on the entity's
financial statements as the entity does not have investments in controlled entitie, associates, or joint
arrangements.
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GRAP 37 Joint arrangements: This standard is effective from 1 April 2020. This standard is effective
from 1 April 2020. It is not expected to have a significant impact on the entity's financial statements as the
entity does not have investments in controlled entitie, associates, or joint arrangements.
GRAP 38 Disclosures of interests in other entities: This standard is effective from 1 April 2020. It is not
expected to have a significant impact on the entity's financial statements as the entity does not have
investments in controlled entitie, associates, or joint arrangements.
GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables: This standard is effective from 1 April 2019 and may have an impact in
the financial statements for the period ending 31 December 2020, however the impact is not expected to be
significant. No changes to recognition and measurement are expected, but additional disclosures and
separate classification in the notes will be done on adoption.
GRAP 109 Accounting by Principals and Agents: This standard is effective from 1 April 2019 and may
have an impact in the financial statements for the period ending 31 December 2020, however, this impact is
expected to be significant. No changes to recognition and measurement are expected, but additional
disclosures in the notes will be done on adoption.
GRAP 110 Living and Non-living Resources: The expected impact has not been determined yet and is
unknown at this stage. This standard is effective from 1 April 2020.
IGRAP 17 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements Where a
Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset: It is expected that there will be no impact
as it is not expected that this Interpretation will apply to the entity. This Interpretation is effective from 1 April
2019.
IGRAP 18 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Recognition and Derecognition of Land: This
Intrepretation is effective from 1 April 2019 and will therefore have an impact in the financial statements for
the period ending 31 December 2020. There may be land that the entity will need to recognise or
derecognise based on the control assessment in the IGRAP, but the significance of the impact on the
financial statements cannot yet be determined.
IGRAP 19 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Liabilities to Pay Levies: This Interpretation is
effective from 1 April 2019 and may have an impact in the financial statements for the period ending 31
December 2020, however the impact is not expected to be significant.
IGRAP 20 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Accounting for Adjustments to Revenue: This
Interpretation is effective from 1 April 2020 and may have an impact in the financial statements for the
period ending 31 December 2021, however the impact is not expected to be significant.
Guideline on Accounting for Arrangements Undertaken in terms of the National Housing
Programme: It is expected that there will be no impact as it is not expected that this Guideline will apply to
the entity. This Guideline is effective from 1 April 2019.
Guideline on The Application of Materiality to Financial Statements: No changes to recognition and
measurement are expected, but additional disclosures in the notes will be done on adoption. This standard
is effective from 1 April 2020 and will therefore have an impact in the financial statements for the period
ending 31 December 2021, however this is not expected to be significant.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
West Coast TVET College is a Public Continuing Education and Training College, established under the Continuing Education and Training Act No
16 of 2006, in Malmesbury, Western Cape Province. The addresses of its registered office and principal place of business are disclosed under
"General Information" included in the Annual Financial Statements and in the introduction of the Annual Report. The principal activities of the
college are disclosed in the Annual Report and are prescribed by the Continuing Education and Training Act.
2019
R

2. INVENTORIES

2018
R

Carrying value of inventory
Textbooks
Consumables

13 508 824
458 320

1 485 050
1 097 742

Total Inventories

13 967 144

2 582 793

0.00

Amounts recognised as an expense
The following amounts, related to inventory, were recognised in the statement of
financial performance during the year:
Books and learning materials
Printing and stationaries
Consumables
Cleaning material
Uniforms and overalls
Welding workshop expenses

9 544 055
1 889 058
6 215 926
455 464
1 085 495
19 189 997

0.00

8 982 105
2 143 514
5 559 704
678 338
546 412
178 368
18 088 440

Inventory pledged as security
No Inventories have been pledged as collateral for liabilities of the college.

3. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Gross
Balances
R

As at 31 December 2019
Student Debtors
Stipends
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepaid Expenses
Sundry Debtors
Deposits

59 499 274
7 935 615
3 819 392
9 231 802
175 096
2 208 241
29 400

Total Receivables from Exchange Transactions

As at 31 December 2018
Student Debtors
Stipends
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepaid Expenses
Sundry Debtors
Deposits
Total Receivables from Exchange Transactions
The college did not pledge any of its receivables as security for borrowing purposes.
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Provision for
Impairment
R

(44 633 803)
(6 468 749)
(2 214 177)
(324 286)
(29 400)

Net
Balances
R

14 865 472
1 466 866
3 819 392
7 017 625
175 096
1 883 955
-

82 898 820
0.00
Gross
Balances
R

(53 670 415)
0.00
Provision for
Impairment
R

29 228 405
0.00
Net
Balances
R

31 866 935
12 704 533
4 374 461
10 180 631
252 406
798 208
29 400
60 206 574
0.00

(22 400 643)
(4 386 311)
(1 740 386)
(236 910)
(29 400)
(28 793 650)
0.00

9 466 292
8 318 222
4 374 461
8 440 245
252 406
561 298
31 412 923
0.00
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3.1 Ageing of Receivables from Exchange Transactions
As at 31 December 2019

Current
0 - 30 days

Past Due
61 - 90 Days

31 - 60 Days

Student Debtors:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

3 772 932
-

Net Balances

3 772 932

-

Total

+ 90 Days

-

55 726 343
(44 633 803)

59 499 274
(44 633 803)

11 092 540

14 865 472

6 476 214
(6 468 749)

7 935 615
(6 468 749)

Stipends:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

893 236
-

460 119
-

106 047
-

Net Balances

893 236

460 119

106 047

7 465

1 466 866

-

3 819 392
-

Provincial Government:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

-

3 779 547
-

39 845
-

Net Balances

-

3 779 547

39 845

4 458 430.54
-

1 584 219
-

974 975
-

4 458 431

1 584 219

974 975

-

-

Net Balances

175 096
175 096

Sundry Debtors:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

759 650
-

409 443
-

54 750
-

984 398
(324 286)

2 208 241
(324 286)

Net Balances

759 650

409 443

54 750

660 112

1 883 955

-

-

-

National Government:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment
Net Balances
Prepaid Expenses:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

Deposits:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

-

Net Balances

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2 214 177
(2 214 177)
-

-

-

3 819 392

9 231 802
(2 214 177)
7 017 625

-

175 096
175 096

29 400
(29 400)

29 400
(29 400)

-

-

As at 31 December 2019 Receivables of R19 169 062 were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these Receivables are as follows:

Current
0 - 30 days

31 - 60 Days

Past Due
61 - 90 Days

+ 90 Days

Total

All Receivables:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

10 059 344
-

6 233 328
-

1 175 617
-

65 430 532
(53 670 415)

82 898 820
(53 670 415)

Net Balances

10 059 344

6 233 328

1 175 617

11 760 117

29 228 405
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As at 31 December 2018

Current
0 - 30 days

Student Debtors:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

-

Net Balances

-

Past Due
61 - 90 Days

31 - 60 Days

-

Total

+ 90 Days

-

31 866 935
(22 400 643)
9 466 292

31 866 935.00
(22 400 643)

4 951 768
(4 386 311)

12 704 533
(4 386 311)

9 466 292

Stipends:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

6 532 055
-

900 910
-

319 800
-

Net Balances

6 532 055

900 910

319 800

565 457

8 318 222

Provincial Government:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

4 334 616
-

-

-

39 845
-

4 374 461
-

Net Balances

4 334 616

39 845

4 374 461

-

-

National Government:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

(192)
-

8 096 132
-

Net Balances

(192)

8 096 132

-

2 084 691
(1 740 386)

10 180 631
(1 740 386)

344 305

8 440 245

-

252 406
-

Prepaid Expenses:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

252 406
-

Net Balances

252 406

-

-

378 861
(236 910)

36 144
-

17 352
-

365 851
-

798 208
(236 910)

141 951

36 144

17 352

365 851

561 298

-

-

29 400
(29 400)

29 400
(29 400)

-

-

Sundry Debtors:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment
Net Balances
Deposits:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

-

Net Balances

-

-

-

-

-

252 406

As at 31 December 2018 Receivables of R20 152 088 were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these Receivables are as follows:
Current
0 - 30 days

31 - 60 Days

Past Due
61 - 90 Days

+ 90 Days

Total

`

All Receivables:
Gross Balances
Less: Provision for Impairment

11 497 746
(236 910)

9 033 186
-

337 152
-

39 338 490
(28 556 740)

60 206 574
(28 793 650)

Net Balances

11 260 836

9 033 186

337 152

10 781 750

31 412 924
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2019
R

3.2 Reconciliation of the Provision for Impairment
Balance at beginning of year
Impairment Losses recognised
Amounts written off as uncollectable

2018
R

28 793 650
24 876 764
-

46 087 660
16 029 664
(33 323 674)

Balance at end of year

53 670 414
28 793 650
0.00
0.00
The provision for bad debts is based on management's experience of debtors. Reference is made to NSFAS receivables still outstanding at year
end. Based on management's experience, many of the debtors are expected to settle outstanding amounts during the next year's registration
process or through NSFAS allocations received during the first semester of the new year. Only receivables outstanding for more than 90 days are
considered for impairment.
No trade and other receivables have been pledged as security, neither is any collateral held.
The prior year balances of Receivables from Exchange Transactions and Receivables from Exchange Transactions have been restated to correct
the omitted claim for NSF pertaining to quarter 4 of 2018. The restatements are indicated in Note 24.4 Restatements of Statement of Financial
Position.
3.4 The credit quality of trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Student Debtors
Stipends
Provincial Government
National Government
Prepaid Expenses
Sundry Debtors
Deposits

Medium
Medium
High
High
High
Medium
High

14 865 472
1 466 866
3 819 392
7 017 625
175 096
1 883 955
29 228 405

9 466 292
8 318 222
4 374 461
8 440 245
252 406
561 298
31 412 923

Credit quality of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Method of determining credit quality of other non-current financial assets
The credit quality of trade and other receivables from exchange transactions are determined and monitored with reference to historical payment
trends. Accordingly the credit quality of the customers included in the balance of trade and other receivables from exchange transactions is
determined internally by applying managerial knowledge and experience. Based on the evaluation of the historical payment trends, customers
included in the balance are categorised into the following:
High credit quality - Customers included in this category have evidenced no defaults or breaches in the contractual repayments.
Medium credit quality - Customers included in this category are prone to late payments, but seldom default on the entire balance owing.
Low credit quality - Customers included in this balance includes customers that frequently default on their outstanding balances and breach
contract. No external credit quality determination have been performed.

4. RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Gross
Balances
R

As at 31 December 2019
Department of Higher Education - Grant Income Outstanding

29 429 080

Total Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions

29 429 080
0.00

Gross
Balances
R

As at 31 December 2018
Department of Higher Education - Grant Income Outstanding

11 059 919

Total Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions

11 059 919
0.00

The college does not hold deposits or other security for its Receivables.
None of the Receivables have been pledged as security for the college's financial liabilities.
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Provision for
Impairment
R

Net
Balances
R

-

29 429 080

-

29 429 080

0.00
Provision for
Impairment
R

0.00

0.00
Net
Balances
R

11 059 919
11 059 919
0.00
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2019
R

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Investments Deposits
Bank Accounts
Cash and Cash Equivalents

2018
R

84 590 854
50 025 571
1 581

56 628 095
38 500 835
995

134 618 006
-

95 129 924
-

Call Deposits

84 590 854

56 628 095

Total Current Investment Deposits

84 590 854
84 590 854

56 628 095
56 628 095

Total Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash
Equivalents include Cash-on-Hand, Cash in Banks and Investments in Money Market Instruments.
5.1 Investment Deposits

Call Deposits are investments with a maturity period of less than 12 months and earn variable interest
5.2 Bank Accounts

2019
R

2018
R

Cash in Bank

50 025 571

38 500 835

Total Bank Accounts

50 025 571
-

38 500 835
-

11 125 068
4 793 191
4 793 191
11 125 068
4 793 191

10 579 049
11 125 068
11 125 068
10 579 049
11 125 068

15 948
16 932
16 932
15 948
16 932

15 031
15 948
15 948
15 031
15 948

440 397
462 225
462 225
440 397
462 225

87 322
440 397
440 397
87 322
440 397

7 413 273
5 071 144
5 071 144
7 413 273
5 071 144

27 635
7 413 273
7 413 273
27 635
7 413 273

45 307
3 227 575
3 227 575
45 307
3 227 575

42 532
45 307
45 307
42 532
45 307

The college has the following bank accounts:
Primary Bank Account
Central Office Control Account - Absa Malmesbury: 4052300937
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

College Bursary Scheme Account - Absa Malmesbury: 9134249468
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
WWC Fundraising - Absa Malmesbury: 4065016240
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
WWC COS - Absa Malmesbury: 4064441995
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
WWC Operational Reserve - Absa Malmesbury: 4076253954
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
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Debt Service Account - Absa Malmesbury: 923952050
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

8 222
4 017 491
4 017 491
8 222
4 017 491

526 152
8 222
8 222
526 152
8 222

1 943 782
4 164 616
4 164 616
1 943 782
4 164 616

159 652
1 943 782
1 943 782
159 652
1 943 782

17 508 839
28 272 398
28 272 398
17 508 839
28 272 398

98 572
17 508 839
17 508 839
98 572
17 508 839

5 071 144
4 164 616
28 272 398
37 508 158

7 413 273
1 943 782
17 508 839
26 865 893

Cash Floats and Advances

1 581

995

Total Cash on hand in Cash Floats, Advances and Equivalents

1 581
1 581

995
995

Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
National Skills Fund Account - Absa Malmesbury: 4079569130
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year
WWC Infrastructure reserves - Absa Malmesbury: 9290094850
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year
Bank statement balance at beginning of year
Bank statement balance at end of year

Cash and cash equivalents that are not available for use by the college
Cash on hand relating to conditional grants where the grant conditions have not been met and restrictive
grants
NSF - COS Projects
NSF - Operational Funds
DHET CIEG
Details
Deliverables have to be met in terms of the agreement with NSF and restrictions imposed by DHET on
CIEG before monies are available for use.
5.3 Cash on hand in Cash Floats, Advances and Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents pledge as collateral
No Cash and cash equivalents have been pledge as collateral
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6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Description

31 December 2019
Reconciliation of Carrying Value

Carrying values at 01 January 2019
Cost - As per prior AFS:
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Losses:
Acquisitions
Depreciation:
Impairment
Reversal of impairment
Disposals:
- Cost
- Accumulated Depreciation:
- Accumulated Impairment Losses

6

Land

Buildings

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE
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Motor Vehicles

Total

1 455 276
3 239 912
(1 755 268)
(29 368)

254 044 581
319 579 337
(58 084 662)
(7 450 095)

Audio visual

1 931 281
2 644 767
(632 992)
(80 494)

29 729 809
(11 443 174)
(654 283)
127 719
(127 986)
(4 498 258)
3 203 421
1 166 851

Paving

558 167
623 350
(65 183)
-

211 358
(213 911)
(6 359)
1 928
(318)
(99 316)
76 250
22 748

R
1 310 470
1 523 792
(213 322)
-

459 167
(306 136)
(381 982)
3 243
(9 216)
(107 651)
48 678
49 757

271 676 665
344 810 888
(66 324 415)
(6 809 809)
#REF!

Kitchen
Equipment

5 173 516
14 737 344
(9 280 230)
(283 598)

(20 777)
-

1 447 973
3 351 953
(1 892 929)
(11 051)

Bulk
Electricity
Supply

1 528 886
3 661 175
(2 014 369)
(117 920)

(60 947)
-

1 696 357
2 996 283
(890 450)
(409 476)

Computer
Equipment

4 832 809
20 389 272
(15 022 650)
(533 813)

5 605 273
(2 238 006)
(75 929)
37 021
(13 124)
(288 693)
187 054
88 514

537 390
623 350
(85 960)
-

R

Office
Equipment

5 194 199
12 732 395
(7 073 291)
(464 905)
1 475 501
(518 702)
(23 887)
3 215
(58 158)
(1 056 721)
779 546
219 017

1 249 523
1 523 792
(274 269)
-

Plant
Machinery and
Equipment

2 171 708
6 375 491
(4 134 293)
(69 490)
6 341 838
(1 653 867)
(17 995)
32 670
(5 879)
(1 908 625)
1 523 520
379 226

8 488 750
20 053 925
(11 331 182)
(233 993)

Furniture
and
Fittings

206 841 690
230 605 260
(17 893 064)
(5 870 506)
1 748 289
(1 412 746)
(83 775)
49 642
(41 291)
(812 459)
431 274
339 895

2 406 854
4 079 955
(1 753 526)
80 425
#REF!

R

23 046 579
23 046 579
1 391 180
(553 998)
(224 792)
157 099
67 693
9 529 577
24 822 485
(15 152 996)
(139 912)

R

310 514
-

12 186 690
(4 464 083)
(64 356)
5 454 318
13 668 224
(8 054 763)
(159 143)

R

3 008 890
7 541 879
(4 531 193)
(1 797)

R

Total

214 499 941
242 791 950
(22 357 147)
(5 934 862)

Kitchen
Equipment

23 357 093
23 357 093
-

Audio visual

263 438 076
310 039 889
(45 032 634)
(1 569 179)

Paving

1 955 806
3 106 297
(1 130 821)
(19 670)

Bulk
Electricity
Supply

602 204
1 049 327
(424 694)
(22 429)

9 539 448
(13 052 028)
(6 607 133)
726 218
254 044 580
319 579 337
(58 084 662)
(7 450 095)
254 044 580.20

Computer
Equipment

578 945
623 350
(44 405)
-

133 614
(624 447)
(10 320)
622
1 455 276
3 239 912
(1 755 268)
(29 368)

R

Office
Equipment

1 371 417
1 523 792
(152 375)
-

1 595 440
(208 298)
(58 065)
1 931 281
2 644 767
(632 992)
(80 494)

Plant
Machinery and
Equipment

6 693 290
14 002 379
(7 065 230)
(243 858)

(20 777)
558 167
623 350
(65 183)
-

Furniture
and
Fittings

1 552 742
3 203 045
(1 587 097)
(63 207)

(60 947)
1 310 470
1 523 792
(213 322)
-

R
6 412 256
19 072 056
(12 362 341)
(297 459)

734 966
(2 215 000)
(84 087)
44 347
5 173 515
14 737 344
(9 280 231)
(283 598)

Motor Vehicles

5 081 442
10 806 306
(5 523 596)
(201 269)

458 130
(427 273)
(61 403)
6 690
1 528 886
3 661 175
(2 014 369)
(117 920)
1 528 886.30

R

1 810 973
5 142 656
(3 262 193)
(69 490)

1 317 216
(2 660 309)
(238 832)
2 478
4 832 809
20 389 272
(15 022 650)
(533 813)

Buildings

214 653 804
228 785 483
(13 479 882)
(651 797)

1 926 088
(1 549 695)
(283 920)
20 284
5 194 198
12 732 395
(7 073 291)
(464 905)

R
22 725 197
22 725 197
-

1 232 835
(872 100)
2 171 708
6 375 491
(4 134 293)
(69 490)
2 171 708.19

Land

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Carrying values at 31 December 2019
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation:
Accumulated Impairment Losses

31 December 2018
Reconciliation of Carrying Value
Description

Carrying values at 01 January 2018
Cost - As per prior AFS:
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Losses:
321 381
1 819 777
(4 413 182)
(5 870 506)
651 797
23 046 579
206 841 690
23 046 579
230 605 260
(17 893 064)
(5 870 506)
23 046 578.57 ##############

The opening balances of Property, Plant and Equipment have been restated to correct insignificant differences between the asset register and the general ledger. The restatement is indicated in Note 24.4 Restatements of Statement of Financial

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Acquisitions
Depreciation:
Impairment
Reversal of impairment
Disposals:
Carrying values at 31 December 2018
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation:
Accumulated Impairment Losses
6

PPE for which the College has control, but does have the legal title:
Buildings for Vredendal were built on Erf 1539. The land is registered in the name of the Western Cape Department of Transport and Public Works. The property is allocated to the College for a period of at least 50 years.
Buildings for Citrusdal were built on Erf 1752. The land is registered in the name of the Western Cape Department of Transport and Public Works. The property is allocated to the College for a period of at least 50 years.
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2019
R
6

2018
R

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
6.1 Gross Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment that is fully depreciated
and still in use
There are no Property, Plant and Equipment that is fully depreciated at year-end and still in use by the
college.
6.2 Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment retired from active use
and not classified as a Discontinued Operation
No Property, Plant and Equipment were retired from active use and not classified as a Discontinued
Operation during the financial year.
6.3 Assets pledged as security
The college did not pledge any of its Property, Plant or Equipment as security.

6.4 Change in Estimate - Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment reviewed
There was a R2 083 843 (2018: R0) change in depreciation due a change in the estimated useful life of
various assets of the college for the financial year.
A change in the estimated useful life of various assets of the college has resulted in the following decreases
in depreciation for the mentioned sub-classes for the financial year:
Furniture and Fittings
Computer Equipment
Kitchen Equipment/Domestic Equipment
Audiovisual Equipment
Office Equipment
Workshop Equipment Plant Mach Equip
Office Equipment
Vehicles

231 983.52
471 122.74
161 541.63
5 434.81
40 940.05
986 186.68
40 940.05
145 693.40

Total Change in Estimate for Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment

-

2 083 843

-

Increase / (Decrease) in Depreciation due to adjustments to Useful Lives of PPE

(2 083 843)

-

Increase / (Decrease) in Depreciation of PPE

(2 083 843)

-

Depreciation as previously stated - before change in useful lives
Adjustment due to Change in Accounting Estimate

13 527 017
(2 083 843)

13 052 028
-

Depreciation as per Note 6

11 443 174

13 052 028

Acquisitions per Reconciliation
Less In Kind Public Contributions

(29 729 809)
-

(9 539 448)
933 195

Total Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

(29 729 809)

(8 606 253)

0.00(127 986)
127 986

0.00-

The change in estimates will result in a decrease of R2 083 843 in the depreciation expense for the college
over the next three financial years.

6.5 Land and Buildings carried at Fair Value
The college's Land and Buildings are accounted for according to the cost model and therefore no fair value
has been determined.
6.6 Calculation of Cash Flow:

Disposals per Reconciliation
Less Gains / Losses on Disposal of Capital Assets

Refer Note N/A

Total Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

-
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2019
R

2018
R

WIP Balance
Affected

WIP Balance
Affected

2019

2018

6.7 Delayed Projects
The college has projects that are currently experiencing delays or were halted. For each project, the reason
for the delay or halting of the project are noted. The carrying amount of those assets included in the
balance of Property, Plant and Equipment are listed below:
Asset Class

Reason for delay

Buildings

Glowing Sunset(The Contractor) failed to honor the contract as per the
agreement.

-

3 972 060

-

3 972 060

6.8 Reconciliation of Capital Construction Projects still in Progress at Year-end
As at 31 December 2019
Buildings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Audiovisual

As at 31 December 2018
Buildings
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Computer Equipment
Kitchen equipment

Opening Balance
4 092 280
-

Additions
7 756 762
1 554 637
148 489
203 246

Transfers
(8 629 997)
-

Closing Balance
3 219 046
1 554 637
148 489
203 246

4 092 280

9 663 136

(8 629 997)

5 125 419

Opening Balance
15 656 303
22 919
182 000
741 470
893 667

Additions
1 015 100
49 869
111 734
75 579

Transfers
(12 579 123)
(72 788)
(182 000)
(853 204)
(969 246)

Closing Balance
4 092 280
-

17 496 359

1 252 281

(14 656 360)

4 092 280

6.8 Expenditure incurred to Repair and Maintain Property, Plant and Equipment
The following specific costs included in the amount of Repairs and Maintenance were incurred by entity during the reporting
period:
Land and Buildings
- Contracted Services
- Inventory Consumed
Motor Vehicles
- Contracted Services
- Inventory Consumed
Furniture And Fittings
- Contracted Services
- Inventory Consumed
Plant, Machinery and equipment
- Contracted Services
- Inventory Consumed
Computer Equipment
- Contracted Services
- Inventory Consumed
Audiovisual
- Contracted Services
- Inventory Consumed

4 528 313
4 342 971
185 343
244 486
75 260
169 226
32 168
32 168
493 232
460 250
32 982
47 694
43 863
3 831
-

2 867 782
1 700 215
1 167 566
326 044
311 492
14 552
182 265
151 149
31 116
748 021
285 771
462 249
39 698
39 698
13 480
9 390
4 090

Total Expenditure incurred to Repair and Maintaince

5 345 893

4 177 290
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2019
R

2018
R

6.10 Provisions of Directive 7 applied
The college utilised the provisions of Directive 7: Deemed Cost in order to ensure that all assets identified during the annual verification is included
in the asset regsiter. Historical Cost information was not available to support the newly identified assets. The costs were estimated based on the
carrying value of similar items as these represented the depreciated replacement costs of the assets.
The aggregated value of the adjustment to the balances of Property, Plant and Equipment are listed below. The restatement of the prior period is
indicated in Note 24.4 Restatements of Statement of Financial Position.

316 259
223 483
90 486
144 236
404 888

Adjustment to
Accumulated
Depreciation
(197 635)
(139 658)
(56 546)
(90 135)
(202 389)

Adjustment to
Prior Year
Depreciation
(39 532)
(27 935)
(11 311)
(18 030)
(40 484)

1 179 352

(686 362)

(137 293)

355 696

Provision for leave
Litigation Expenses

180 653
450 579

138 337
390 000

Total Provisions

631 232

528 337

Adjustment to Cost
Furniture and Fittings
Plant, Machinery and Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Audiovisual

7

Adjustment to
Carrying Value
79 092
55 890
22 629
36 070
162 015

PROVISIONS

Provision for Leave is calculated based on leave days outstanding at year-end and quantified in terms of
total cost of employment per employee.

0.00

0.00

The Provision for Litigation expenses was previously disclosed as a Contingent Liability. The case was
however resolved against the college and a settlement amount had to be paid during 2020.
8

PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Trade Creditors
Unallocated deposits
Stipends
National Government
NSFAS

4 670 169
707 832
10 077 693
6 450 962
14 473 140

3 006 604
633 803
8 726 600
1 022 976
9 162 124

Total Payables

36 379 795

22 552 107

The prior year balances of Payables from Exchange Transactions and Receivables from Exchange Transactions have been restated to correct the
omitted claim for NSF pertaining to quarter 4 of 2018. The restatements are indicated in Note 24.4 Restatements of Statement of Financial Position.

9

UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS
9.1 Unspent Conditional Grants from other spheres of Government
Overclaims on Programme Funding: DHET
Earmarked Capital funding: NSF COS
Earmarked Operational funding: NSF COS

379 557
6 298 272

23 949
2 544 139
7 883 952

Total Unspent Conditional Grant and receipts

6 677 829

10 452 040

0.00

0.00

132 386
3 407 125
(3 456 128)

661 953
2 741 320
(3 270 887)

10 OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES
Operating Leases are recognised on the straight-line basis as per the requirements of GRAP 13. In respect
of Non-cancellable Operating Leases the following liabilities have been recognised:
Balance at beginning of year
Operating Lease expenses recorded
Operating Lease payments effected
Total Operating Lease Liabilities

83 383

Page 48

86

132 386

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
2019
R

2018
R
0.00

11 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

0.00

11.1 Obligations under Finance Lease Liabilities
The College as Lessee:
The obligations under Finance Leases are as follows:
Present Value of Minimum Lease
Payments
2019
2018
R
R

Minimum Lease Payments

Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
Over five years

Less: Future Finance Obligations
Present Value of Minimum Lease Obligations

2019
R

2018
R

289 304
892 022
1 181 326

-

174 565
720 673
895 239

-

(289 304)

-

-

-

892 022

-

895 239

-

(174 566)

-

Less: Amounts due for settlement within 12 months (Current Portion)
Finance Lease Obligations due for settlement after 12 months (Non-current Portion)

720 673
0.00

The college has finance lease agreements for the following significant classes of assets:
- Office Equipment

0.00

Included in these classes are the following significant leases:
(i) Photocopiers
- Carrying value of assets at year end
- Instalments are payable monthly in advance
- Average period outstanding
- Average effective interest rate
- Average quarterly instalment

R 856 321
49 months
14.04%
R 24 108.70

12 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
The Accumulated Surplus consists of the following Internal Funds and Reserves:
Accumulated Surplus due to the results of Operations

434 251 821

360 565 270

Total Accumulated Surplus

434 251 821

360 565 270

Prior period errors were corrected on Property, Plant and Equipment, Government Grants and Tuition and Related Fees. The
restatements are indicated in Note 24.1 Restatements of Accumulated Surplus.

13 GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES
Revenue from Conditional Grants
Skills Levy Liability
Earmarked Capital funding: NSF - COS
Earmarked Operational funding: NSF - COS

2 164 582
1 899 302

709 247
55 861
25 415

Revenue from Unconditional Grants
Program funding: Grants paid via Persal (Cash)
Programme funding: Grants paid via Persal (Operational)
Program funding: Maintenance: DHET - CIEG

82 654 362
103 124 947
17 085 857

49 060 919
95 613 653
17 744 516

Total Government grants and subsidies

206 929 050

163 209 610
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2019
R

2018
R

13.1 Calculation of Cash Flow:
Government Grants and Subsidies Income
DHET - Persal Funding (Non-cash)
DHET Overclaim
Opening Balance of Debtors: Non-exchange Transactions
Closing Balance of Debtors: Non-exchange Transactions
Opening Balance of Unspent Government Grants
Closing Balance of Unspent Government Grants
Total Receipts for Government Grants and Subsidies

206 929 050
(103 124 947)
11 059 919
(29 429 080)
(10 452 040)
6 677 829
81 660 732

Note 4

0.00-

13.2 Programme funding: Grants paid via Persal (Operational)
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue
Transferred to Receivables from Non-Exchange

99 069 714
(103 124 947)
4 055 233
-

163 209 610
(95 613 652)
23 948
24 532 790
(11 059 919)
(106 247)
10 452 040
91 438 570
0.00-

(15 153 751)
99 707 485
(95 613 653)
11 059 919
-

0.000.00The National Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) funds many of the activities of the college through means of a grant allocation.
PERSAL funding is for the portion of funding that is paid via DHET's own PERSAL payroll.
13.3 Program funding: Grants paid via Persal (Cash)
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue
Transferred to Receivables from Non-Exchange

23 949
(9 379 039)
57 256 567
58 463 907
(82 654 362)
(49 060 919)
25 373 846
23 949
0.000.00The National Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) funds many of the activities of the college through means of a grant allocation.
Programme funding is the portion of the funding which is paid to the college in cash. The college must submit a claim of actual expenditure for any
Persal Savings to the department which is refunded to the college in cash.
13.4 Skills Levy Liability
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue

-

106 246
603 001
(709 247)
-

13.5 Earmarked Capital funding: NSF - COS
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue

2 544 139
(2 164 582)
379 557

2 600 000
(55 861)
2 544 139

7 883 952
(2)
313 623
(1 899 302)
6 298 272

7 899 990
9 377
(25 415)
7 883 952

17 085 857
(17 085 857)
-

17 744 516
(17 744 516)
-

10 452 040
173 412 137
313 623
(206 929 050)
29 429 080
6 677 829

(24 426 544)
187 018 898
9 377
(163 209 610)
11 059 919
10 452 040

13.6 Earmarked Operational funding: NSF - COS
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Interest allocated
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue

13.7 Earmarked Maintenance funding: DHET - CIEG
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue

13.8 Reconciliation of All Grants
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Interest allocated
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue
Transferred to Receivables from Non-Exchange
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 9)
14 PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS
Goods received in kind

14 000

933 195

Total Public Contributions and Donations

14 000

933 195

54 604 432

46 073 899

15 TUITION AND RELATED FEES
Class Fees:
Tuition fees - Students
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2019
R
Skills, Learnership and Related Fees
Residential and Transportation Fees
Partnership Funding

2018
R

22 454 150
70 471 878
6 314 448

16 658 535
37 405 548
7 793 588

153 844 908

107 931 569

Tuition and Related Fees Income
Opening Balance of Debtors: Tuition Fees
Closing Balance of Debtors: Tuition Fees
Opening Balance of Accrued Interest
Closing Balance of Accrued Interest
Impairment Losses recognised

153 844 908
31 412 923
(29 228 405)
(24 876 764)

107 931 569
15 944 248
(31 412 923)
(30 599)
(16 029 664)

Total Receipts for Tuition and Related Fees

131 152 663
0.00-

76 402 631
0.00-

External Investments:
Interest - Bank
Interest - Financial Assets

3 568 492
4 407 606

376 865
3 194 220

Total Interest Earned

7 976 097

3 571 085

0.00-

0.00-

External Interest Income
Opening Balance of Accrued Interest
Closing Balance of Accrued Interest

7 976 097
-

3 571 085
30 599
-

Total Receipts for Interest Received

7 976 097

3 601 684

0.00-

0.00-

Bad Debts Recovered
Insurance Claims
Tender Documents
Sundry Income
Settlement discount

58 573
84 895
101 900
918 261
46 912

11 547 434
2 668 989
58 800
1 731 123
-

Total Other Revenue

1 210 541
0.00-

16 006 347
0.00-

1 210 541
24 500
-

16 006 347
45 420
(3)

1 235 041

16 051 764

Total Tuition and Related Fees
15.1 Calculation of Cash Flow:

16 INTEREST EARNED

16.1 Calculation of Interest Cash Flow:

17 OTHER REVENUE

17.1 Calculation of Cash Flow:
Income from Other Revenue
Income from Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Rounding difference

Note 17
Note N/A
Note N/A

Total Receipts for Other Revenue

0.00

Page 51

89

(0.00)

WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
2019
R

2018
R

18 EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Overtime
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Council Members
Performance and other bonuses

28 586 151
101 304
979 195
832 128
225 943
4 486 307

21 466 729
62 599
1 161 157
464 212
604 548
2 892 984

35 211 028

26 652 227

77 264 564
14 914 972
4 237 665
6 339 228
368 518

71 818 036
12 929 326
3 830 123
6 764 274
271 894

DHET Management Fee Cost:
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical aids
Housing, travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances
Performance and other bonuses
Leave payment

Total Employee Related Costs
18.1 Calculation of Cash Flow:
Employee Related Costs Expenditure
Management Fee Cost (Non-cash)
Opening Balance of Provisions
Closing Balance of Provisions
Total Payments for Employee Related Costs

103 124 947

95 613 652

138 335 975

122 265 879

0.00-

0.00-

138 335 975
(103 124 947)
528 337
(631 232)

122 265 879
(95 613 652)
117 935
(528 337)

35 108 134

26 241 825

0.00-

0.00-

654 283
654 283

6 607 133
6 607 133

19 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
19.1 Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
Impairment Losses Recognised:
Property, Plant and Equipment
Impairment Losses Reversed:
Property, Plant and Equipment

(127 719)
(127 719)

Total Impairment losses on Fixed Assets

(726 218)
(726 218)

526 564

5 880 916

Impairment Losses Recognised:
Receivables from Exchange Transactions

24 876 764
24 876 764

16 029 664
16 029 664

Impairment Losses Reversed:
Receivables from Exchange Transactions

-

-

Total Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

24 876 764

16 029 664

Total Impairment Losses

25 403 329

21 910 580

19.2 Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
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R

2018
R

20 PRINTING AND STATIONERY
Stationery - Staff
Printing and Copying
Printer Cartridges

577 837
780 728
530 493

493 858
1 030 250
619 406

1 889 058

2 143 514

0.00-

0.00-

Electricity
Rates and Taxes
Water and Utilities

4 007 205
1 669 344
2 168 435

3 471 205
1 795 253
2 245 868

Total Municipal Services

7 844 983

7 512 326

0.00-

0.00-

Training Project Partnership
Other Contracted Services

635 845
5 765 606

220 121
3 090 821

Total Contracted Services

6 401 451

3 310 942

0.00-

0.00-

185 783
651 262
125 195
455 464
141 714
11 754
1 205 866
1 174 516
19 229
742 950
125 521
4 248 546
193 210
6 203
441 070
7 121 200
1 606 486
1 085 495

42 053
406 005
356 022
678 338
238 921
462
2 055
12 600
1 116 862
975 333
22 274
769 200
235 106
2 773 464
143 421
2 479
246 018
2 168 501
546 412

19 541 463
0.00-

10 735 525
0.00-

Total Printing and Stationery

21 MUNICIPAL SERVICES

22 CONTRACTED SERVICES

23 GENERAL EXPENSES
Advertising
Bank Charges
Bursaries
Cleaning
Conferences and delegations
Council fees
Debt Collection Fees
Fines and penalties
Fuel and oil
Insurance
Licence fees - vehicles
Legal Fees
Membership fees
Other expenses
Other rentals
Parking fees
Rental of Office Equipment
Student Allowances
Training
Uniforms & overalls

23.1 Calculation of Other Payments Cash Flow:
Expenditure for General Expenses

Note 23

Total for Other Payments
23.2 Calculation of Suppliers Paid Cash Flow:
External Audit Fees
Marketing Expenses
Printing And Stationery
Books and Learning Materials
Rental of Buildings
License Fees
Consumables

Note N/A
Note N/A
Note 20
Note N/A
Note N/A
Note N/A
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19 541 463

10 735 525

19 541 463

10 735 525

0.00-

0.00-

2 377 164
1 192 767
1 889 058
9 544 055
3 694 995
3 391 183
6 215 926

2 399 094
1 366 216
2 143 514
8 982 105
3 024 869
1 714 804
5 559 704
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2019
R
Municipal Services
Students Residents Meals
Security
Travel And Accommodation
Telephone And Internet
Contracted Services
Consulting Fees
Opening Balance of Payables: Exchange Transactions
Closing Balance of Payables: Exchange Transactions
DHET Overpayment
Opening Balance of Operating Lease Liability
Closing Balance of Operating Lease Liability
Opening Balance of Inventories
Closing Balance of Inventories

Note 21
Note N/A
Note N/A
Note N/A
Note N/A
Note 22
Note 22
Note 8
Note 8
Note 8
Note 10
Note 10
Note 2
Note 2

Total for Suppliers Paid

2018
R

7 844 983
14 400 003
4 444 443
37 332 626
1 536 537
6 401 451
1 154 295
22 552 107
(36 379 795)
132 386
(83 383)
(2 582 793)
13 967 144

7 512 326
8 236 728
2 582 179
27 213 869
1 810 175
3 310 942
1 832 855
18 081 895
(22 552 107)
23 949
44 606
(132 386)
(4 836 842)
2 582 793

99 025 151

70 901 289

0.00-

0.00-

24 CORRECTION OF ERROR
Corrections were made during the previous financial years. Details of the corrections are described below:
24.1 Restatements of Accumulated Surplus
The prior year figures of Accumulated Surplus has been restated to correctly disclose the monies held by the college in terms of the disclosure
notes indicated below.
The effect of the changes are as follows:

Accumulated
Surplus

Balances published as at 31 December 2017

311 871 250

Correction of Error:Aligment of Fixed Asset Register to General Ledger (Reconciliation of Movements)
Newly identified assets during annual asset verification
De-recognition of DHET: Earmarked Capital Funding as a Conditional Grant
Rounding differences
Total Opening Balance Restatement

(31 153)
492 990
2 029 739
2
2 491 578

Restated Balances as at 31 December 2017

314 362 828

Previously stated Profit for the Year 2018

24 818 101

Correction of Error:Accrual of NSF Quarter 4 Claim for 2018
Accrual of CIEG Expenditure not included in the Grant Revenue for the period
Newly identified assets during annual asset verification
De-recognition of DHET: CIEG Maintenance Grant as a Conditional Grant
Recognition of a liability on a Litigation matter
Rounding Differences
Total Restatement for the Year

4 402 644
40 920
(137 143)
17 467 919
(390 000)
1
21 384 341

Restated Balances as at 31 December 2018

360 565 270

24.2 Restatements of Revenue
The prior year figures of Revenue Classes have been restated to correctly classify the nature of Revenue of the college.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Prior Year
2018
Revenue
Other Transfers and Sponsorships
Government Grants and Subsidies Received
Public Contributions and Donations
Tuition and Related Fees
Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Interest Earned
Sale Of Goods And Rendering of Services
Other Revenue

Current Year
Restated
2018
Revenue

145 863 199
933 195
103 528 925
45 420
3 408 658
171 790
16 006 346

163 209 610
933 195
107 931 569
45 420
3 571 085
171 790
16 006 347

269 957 533

291 869 016
0.00-
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Amount
Restated
By
17 346 410
(0)
4 402 644
162 427
(0)
1
21 911 483
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Prior Year
2018
Profit for the year

24 818 101

2019
R

2018
R

Current Year
Restated
2018

Amount
Restated

46 202 442

21 384 341

Prior year amounts of items in Revenue included in the Statement of Financial Performance have been restated as indicated below:
Revenue
In-kind Service
Balance previously reported

Interest
Earned
-

3 408 658

Accrual of NSF Quarter 4 Claim for 2018
(57 499 256)
Accrual of CIEG Expenditure not included in the Grant Revenue for the period
Unconditional Maintenance Grant received DHET previously accounted for as conditional
Adjustment for Rounding Differences
-

162 427
-

Restated Balance now reported

3 571 085
0.00-

0.00-

Government
Grants
145 863 199
40 920
17 305 492
(1)
163 209 610
0.00-

Tuition
Fees
103 528 925
4 402 644
0
107 931 569
0.00-

Interest earned:
The prior year amounts for Interest Earned have been restated as an as the grant revenue and interest was incorrectly deemed to be conditional
rather than restrictive in terms of the recognition criteria of the grant.
Government Grants and Subsidies Received:
The prior year amounts for Government Grants & Subsidies Received have been restated as an as the grant revenue and interest was incorrectly
deemed to be conditional rather than restrictive in terms of the recognition criteria of the grant.
Tuition and Related Fees:
The prior year amounts for Tuition and Related Fees have been restated to correct the omitted claim for NSF pertaining to quarter 4 of 2018.

24.3 Reclassification of Expenditure
The prior year figures of Expenditure Classes have been restated to correctly classify the nature of Expenditure of the college.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Prior Year
2018
Expenditure
Employee Related Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation
External Audit Fees
Impairment Losses
Marketing Expenses
Printing And Stationery
Repairs and Maintenance
Finance Costs
Books and Learning Materials
Rental of Buildings
Consumables
Municipal Services
Students Residents Meals
Consulting fees
License Fees
Security
Travel And Accommodation
Telephone And Internet
Contracted Services
General Expenses

Current Year
Restated
2018
Expenditure

122 265 880
12 914 736
2 399 094
21 910 580
1 366 216
2 143 514
13 328
8 982 105
3 024 869
5 559 704
7 512 326
8 236 728
1 832 855
1 714 804
2 582 179
27 213 869
1 810 175
3 310 944
10 345 526

122 265 879
13 051 880
2 399 094
21 910 580
1 366 216
2 143 514
13 328
8 982 105
3 024 869
5 559 704
7 512 326
8 236 728
1 832 855
1 714 804
2 582 179
27 213 869
1 810 175
3 310 942
10 735 525

245 139 432

245 666 574

Amount
Restated
By
(1)
137 143
(2)
390 000
527 140

Depreciation and Amortisation
The prior year amount for Depreciation and Amortisation was restated due to the gains of assets that were newly identified during the annual
verification. Refer to the "Restatements of Financial Position" for further details in this regard.
General Expenses
The amount of R390 000 accounted for is for legal fees. Previously the liability was included under Contingent Liabilities but as the case turned
against Council it was necessary to account for the cost.
24.4 Restatements of Statement of Financial Position
The prior year figures of Classes in the Statement of Financial Position have been restated to correctly classify the nature of Assets, Liabilities and
Net Assets of the college.
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The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Prior Year
2018
Balance

Current Assets
Inventories
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019
R

2018
R

Restated
2018
Balance

Amount
Restated
By

2 582 792
26 986 330
11 059 919
95 129 926

2 582 793
31 412 923
11 059 919
95 129 924

(1)
(4 426 594)
2

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

253 719 888

254 044 580

(324 692)

Current Liabilities
Provisions
Payables from Exchange Transactions
Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
Operating Lease Liabilities

(138 337)
(22 552 107)
(29 966 668)
(132 386)

(528 337)
(22 552 107)
(10 452 040)
(132 386)

390 000
(19 514 628)
-

(336 689 351)

(360 565 270)

23 875 919

Net Assets
Accumulated Surplus / (Deficit)

6

-

6

Opening balances and prior year amounts of items in the Statement of Financial Position have been restated as indicated below:

Receivables
from Exchange
Transactions

Payables from
Exchange
Transactions

Unspent
Conditional
Grants and
Receipts

Balances previously published per AFS as at 31 December 2017

15 944 248

(18 081 895)

(2 135 986)

Movement for the year (previously disclosed)
Unconditional Maintenance Grant received DHET previously accounted for as conditional

11 042 082
-

(4 470 212)
-

(27 830 683)

Balances previously published per AFS as at 31 December 2018

26 986 330

(22 552 107)

(27 936 930)

Accrual of NSF Quarter 4 Claim for 2018
Accrual of CIEG Expenditure not included in the Grant Revenue for the period

4 402 644
-

-

Unconditional Maintenance Grant received DHET previously accounted for as
conditional
Reallocation of DHET Overclaim

23 950

-

31 412 923
-

(22 552 107)
-

Balances previously published per AFS as at 31 December 2017

2 029 739

40 920
17 467 920
(23 950)
(10 452 040)
Property, Plant
and Equipment
262 976 188

Aligment of Fixed Asset Register to General Ledger (Reconciliation of Movements)
Newly identified assets during annual asset verification
Adjustments to Cost
Adjustments to Accumulated Depreciation
Rounding differences

1 179 352
(686 362)

Balances now published per AFS as at 31 December 2017

(31 153)
492 990
(2)
263 438 023

Movement as per 2018 AFS

(9 256 300)

Newly identified assets during annual asset verification - increased depreciation

(137 143)

Balances now published per AFS as at 31 December 2018

254 044 580
(0.00)
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2019
R

2018
R

Receivables from Exchange Transactions:
The prior year balances of Receivables from Exchange Transactions and Payables from Exchange Transactions have been restated to correct the
omitted claim for NSF pertaining to quarter 4 of 2018.
Payables from Exchange Transactions:
The prior year balances of Payables from Exchange Transactions and Receivables from Exchange Transactions have been restated to correct the
omitted claim for NSF pertaining to quarter 4 of 2018. The payables balance was reclassified to receivables.
Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts:
The prior year balances of Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts have been restated as the grant revenue and interest was incorrectly
deemed to be conditional rather than restrictive in terms of the recognition criteria of the grant.
Provisions
Previously an amount was disclosed under Contingent Liabilities in respect of litigation against Council. It was clear that this case is going to turn
against Council and a Provision should have been accounted for at the end of December 2018.
Property, Plant and Equipement:
The opening balances of Property, Plant and Equipment have been restated to correct insignificant differences between the asset register and the
general ledger. Furthermore, the opening balances and prior year amounts of Accumulated Depreciation for Property, Plant and Equipment have
been restated due to assets identified for the first time when the annual verification was performed. Costs were determined by using the carrying
value of similar items as at 31 December 2018.
25 CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS
Surplus for the Year
Adjustment for:
Revenue Received-in-Kind: Persal Grant
Expenditure incurred from Persal Grant
Public Contributions: In kind
Depreciation and Amortisation
Impairment Losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Contribution to Provision
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals
Impairment Losses
Operating surplus before working capital changes

73 686 550

46 202 442

(103 124 947)
103 124 947
11 443 174
526 564
102 894
(49 003)
24 876 764
110 714 931

(95 613 652)
95 613 652
(933 195)
13 051 880
5 880 916
410 402
87 780
16 029 664
80 729 890

(11 384 351)
(22 692 246)
(18 369 161)
13 827 688
(3 774 210)
0

2 254 049
(31 474 390)
13 472 871
4 470 212
10 321 843
(3)

68 322 651

79 774 472

Approved and Contracted for:
Audio Visual Equipment Additions
Computer Equipment Additions
Furniture and Fittings Additions
Improvements to Buildings
Office Equipment Additions
Paving Additions
Plant, Machinery and Equipment Additions

12 204 980
2 054 221
570 808
3 157 923
198 315
1 104 794
5 118 919

8 169 996
2 593 849
4 077 647
1 498 500
-

Total Capital Commitments

12 204 980

8 169 996

5 922 592
6 282 388
12 204 980

2 029 739
4 641 757
1 498 500
8 169 996

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables from Exchange Transactions (Gross Movement)
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables from Exchange Transactions
Increase/(Decrease) in Conditional Grants and Receipts
Rounding differences
Cash generated by / (utilised in) Operations

26

COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
26.1 Capital Commitments
Commitments in respect of Capital Expenditure:

This expenditure will be financed from:
- Government Grants
- Own Resources
- Own resourses (Finance lease)
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2019
R

2018
R

26.2 Operating Lease Commitments
At the reporting date the College has outstanding commitments under operating leases which fall due as follows:
Lessee
The category of asset leased is rental of buildings.
At the reporting date the College had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years

Operating lease liability

1 412 202
1 412 202

2 759 846
946 002
3 705 848

83 383

132 386

Operating Leases consists of the following:
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 2 years. and rentals are fixed for an average of 1 years. No contingent rent is
payable.
Restrictions imposed by lease arrangements are that no alterations are to be made to the lease property without the prior consent of the lessor.
Lease and sublease payments recognised in the statement of financial performance
Minimum lease payments
27

1 412 202

3 270 887

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
27.1 Classification
FINANCIAL ASSETS:
In accordance with GRAP 104.13 the Financial Assets of the college are classified as follows:
Financial Assets

Classification

Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Student Debtors
Stipends
Provincial Government
National Government
Sundry Debtors
Deposits

Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost

14 865 472
1 466 866
3 819 392
7 017 625
1 883 955
-

9 466 292
8 318 222
4 374 461
8 440 245
561 298
-

Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
National Government

Amortised cost

29 429 080

11 059 919

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Call Deposits
Bank Balances
Cash Floats and Advances

Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Fair value

84 590 854
50 025 571
1 581

56 628 095
38 500 835
995

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Student Debtors Control
Other Debtors
Other Exchange Services

14 865 472
10 837 017
3 350 821

9 466 292
12 814 706
8 879 519

Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions

National Government

29 429 080

11 059 919

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Call Deposits
Bank Balances

84 590 854
50 025 571

56 628 095
38 500 835

193 098 814

137 349 366

1 581

995

1 581

995

193 100 395
-

137 350 361
-

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial Assets at Fair Value:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Floats and Advances

Total Financial Assets
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R

2018
R

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
In accordance with GRAP 104.13 the Financial Liabilities of the college are classified as follows:
Financial Liabilities

Classification

Long-term Liabilities
Finance Lease Liabilities

Amortised cost

720 673

-

Payables from Exchange Transactions
Trade Creditors
Unallocated deposits
Stipends
National Government
NSFAS

Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost

4 670 169.29
707 832
10 077 693
6 450 962
14 473 140

3 006 604.26
633 803
8 726 600
1 022 976
9 162 124

Unspent Conditional Grants
Overclaims on Programme Funding: DHET
Earmarked Capital funding: DHET
Earmarked Capital funding: NSF COS
Earmarked Operational funding: NSF COS
Earmarked Maintenance funding: DHET (CIEG)

Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
Amortised cost

379 557
6 298 272
-

23 949
2 544 139
7 883 952
-

Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities
Finance Lease Liabilities

Amortised cost

174 566

-

895 239
36 379 795
6 677 829

22 552 107
10 452 040

43 952 863

33 004 147

43 952 863
0.00-

33 004 147
0.00-

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
Finance Lease Liabilities
Payables from Exchange Transactions
Unspent Conditional Grants

Annuity Loans
Trade Creditors
Trade Creditors

Total Financial Liabilities
27.2 Capital Risk Management

The college manages its capital to ensure that the college will be able to continue as a going concern while delivering sustainable services to
consumers through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The college’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2018.
The capital structure of the college consists of debt, which includes Cash and Cash Equivalents and Equity, comprising Accumulated Surplus as
disclosed in Note 12 and the Statement of Changes in Net Assets.
Gearing Ratio
2019
R

2018
R

The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:
Long term debt
Cash and Cash Equivalents

895 239
(134 618 006)

(95 129 924)

Net Indebtedness

(133 722 767)

(95 129 924)

434 251 821

360 565 270

Equity
Net debt to equity ratio

-30.79%

-26.38%

Debt is defined as Long-term Liabilities, together with its Short-term Portion.
Equity includes all Funds and Reserves of the college, disclosed as Net Assets in the Statement of Financial Performance and Net Debt as
described above.
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R

2018
R

27.3 Financial Risk Management Objectives
The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the college's risk management framework. The college's
risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the college, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Due to the largely non-trading nature of activities and the way in which they are financed, colleges are not exposed to the degree of financial risk
faced by business entities. Generally, Financial Assets and Liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities and are not held to manage
the risks facing the college in undertaking its activities.
The Directorate: Financial Services monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal policies and procedures.
These risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
to market conditions and the college's activities, and compliance with policies and procedures is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous
basis, and annually by external auditors. The college does not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes.
The College Council manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal policies and procedures. These risks include interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and procedures is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis, and
annually by external auditors. The college does not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes.
The Corporate Treasury function reports quarterly to the college’s risk management committee, an independent body that monitors risks and
policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.
Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential risk, reports periodically to the college’s audit
committee, an independent body that monitors the effectiveness of the internal audit function.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these Annual Financial Statements.

27.4 Significant Risks
It is the policy of the college to disclose information that enables the user of its Annual Financial Statements to evaluate the nature and extent of
risks arising from Financial Instruments to which the college is exposed on the reporting date.
The college has exposure to the following risks from its operations in Financial Instruments:
- Credit Risk;
- Liquidity Risk; and
- Market Risk.
Risks and exposures are disclosed as follows:
Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the college’s income
or the value of its holdings in Financial Instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the college if a customer or counterparty to a Financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations
and arises principally from the college’s receivables from customers and investment securities.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that the college will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its Financial Liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The college’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the college’s reputation.
Liquidity Risk is managed by ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to cash flow requirements.
Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual payments are met on a timeous basis and, if required, additional new arrangements are
established at competitive rates to ensure that cash flow requirements are met.
A maturity analysis for Financial Liabilities (where applicable) that shows the remaining undiscounted contractual maturities is disclosed in Note 27.8
to the Annual Financial Statements.
27.5 Market Risk
The college’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates (see Note 27.7 below). No formal policy exists to hedge
volatilities in the interest rate market.
There has been no change to the college’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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R

27.5.1 Interest Rate Risk Management
Interest Rate Risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows associated with a financial instrument will fluctuate in amount as a
result of market interest changes.
Potential concentrations of interest rate risk consist mainly of variable rate deposit investments, long-term receivables, tuition fee debtors, other
debtors, bank and cash balances.
The college limits its counterparty exposures from its money market investment operations by only dealing with major banking institutions. No
investments with a tenure exceeding twelve months are made.
Tuition Fee Debtors comprise of a large number of students, dispersed across different industries and geographical areas. Debtors are presented
net of a provision for impairment.
In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, very little actions can be instituted against these debtors since "restriction of services" is
inappropriate given government's objectives for TVET colleges. However, as a last resort, accounts are "handed over for collection" as applicable in
terms of Council's Financial Policy.
The college is not exposed to credit interest rate risk as the college has no borrowings.
The college’s exposures to interest rates on Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are detailed in the Credit Risk Management section of this
note.
Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the Statement of Financial Position date. The analysis is
prepared by averaging the amount of the investment at the beginning of the financial year and the amount of the investment at the end of the
financial year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease was used, which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. The short and long-term financial instruments at year-end with variable interest rates are set out in Note 27.8 below:

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the college’s:
•
Surplus for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have increased / decreased by R1 148 727 (31 December 2018: R595 453). This is
mainly attributable to the college’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate investments.
Trade Payables:
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the college’s:
• Surplus for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have decreased / increased by R294 660 (31 December 2018: decreased / increased by
R203 170). This is mainly attributable to the college’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
27.6 Credit Risk Management
Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the college. The college has a
sound debt management policy and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
The college uses its own trading records to assess its major customers. The college’s exposure of its counterparties are monitored regularly.
Potential concentrations of credit rate risk consist mainly of variable rate deposit investments, tuition fee debtors, other debtors, bank and cash
balances.
Investments/Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents
The college limits its counterparty exposures from its money market investment operations (financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired)
by only dealing with Absa Bank, and Investec. No investments with a tenure exceeding twelve months are made.

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and Other Receivables are amounts owed by students and other organs of state are presented net of impairment losses. The college does
not have a credit risk policy in place, but the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. The college is compelled in terms of its
constitutional mandate to provide all its residents with basic minimum services without recourse to an assessment of creditworthiness.

In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, very little actions can be instituted against these debtors since "restriction of services" is
inappropriate given government's objectives for TVET colleges. However, as a last resort, accounts are "handed over for collection" as applicable in
terms of Council's Credit Control and Debt Managment Policy.
There were no material changes in the exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies and processes for managing and measuring the risk during
the year under review. The college’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each financial asset in the Statement
of Financial Position, without taking into account the value of any collateral obtained. The college has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of students, and is not concentrated in any particular sector or geographical area.
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The college establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of anticipated losses in respect of trade and other receivables.
The college does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The college defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.
The maximum credit and interest risk exposure in respect of the relevant financial instruments is as follows:
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents
Maximum Credit and Interest Risk Exposure

29 053 309
29 429 080
134 618 006

31 160 517
11 059 919
95 129 924

193 100 395

137 350 361

The major concentrations of credit risk that arise from the college's receivables in relation to customer
classification are as follows:
%

Exchange Debtors:
- Student Debtors
- Other Debtors
- Other Exchange Services
Non-Exchange Debtors:
- DHET

%
25.42%
18.53%
5.73%

Total Credit Risk
Bank and Cash Balances
Cash on hand
ABSA Bank Ltd
Nedbank
Investec
Grindrod Limited
Total Bank and Cash Balances
Credit quality of Financial Assets:
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:
Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Counterparties without external credit rating:Group 1
Group 2
Total Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Group 1
Total Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions

22.42%
30.35%
21.03%

50.32%

26.20%

100.00%

100.00%

1 581
50 068 436
20 812 837
10 556 160
53 178 992

995
38 540 734
48 503 767
8 084 429
-

134 618 006
-

95 129 924
-

10 837 017
18 216 293

12 814 706
18 345 811

29 053 309
-

31 160 517
-

29 429 080
29 429 080
-

11 059 919
11 059 919
-

Credit quality Groupings:
Group 1 - High certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors are strong and the risk of non-payment is small.
Group 2 - Reasonable certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors are sound, although ongoing funding needs may enlarge financing requirement.
The risk of non-payment is small.
Group 3 - Satisfactory liquidity factors and other factors which qualify the entity as investment grade. However, the risk factors of non-payment are
larger.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
27.7 Liquidity Risk Management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Council, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the college’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The college manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables
The college ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand or access to facilities to meet expected operational expenses through the use of cash flow forecasts.
The following tables detail the college’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the college can be required to pay.

Description

Note
ref in
AFS
#

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

Total
R

6 Months

6 - 12

1-2

2-5

More than

or less
R

Months
R

Years
R

Years

5 Years
R

31 December 2019
Non-interest Bearing
- Payables from Exchange transactions
- Unspent Conditional Grants

0.00%

Fixed Interest Rate Instruments
- Finance Lease

43 057 624
36 379 795
6 677 829
-

43 057 624
36 379 795
6 677 829

-

-

-

-

895 239
895 239

84 238
84 238

90 327
90 327

200 714
200 714

519 959
519 959

-

43 952 863

43 141 862

90 327

200 714

519 959

-

33 004 147
22 552 107
10 452 040

33 004 147
22 552 107
10 452 040

-

-

-

-

33 004 147

33 004 147
6

6

12

36

-

14.04%

31 December 2018
Non-interest Bearing
- Payables from Exchange transactions
- Unspent Conditional Grants

0.00%

The following table details the college’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets
including interest that will be earned on those assets except where the college anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period.

Description

Note
ref in
AFS
#

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

6 Months

6 - 12

1-2

2-5

More than

or less
R

Months
R

Years
R

Years

R

5 Years
R

Total

31 December 2019
Non-interest Bearing
- Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
- Trade Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
- Cash and Cash Equivalents

0.00%

58 483 970
29 053 309
29 429 080
1 581

58 483 970
29 053 309
29 429 080
1 581

-

-

-

-

Variable Interest Rate Instruments
- Investment Deposits
- Bank Account

3.50%

134 616 425
84 590 854
50 025 571

134 616 425
84 590 854
50 025 571

-

-

-

-

193 100 395

193 100 395

-

-

-

-

31 December 2018
Non-interest Bearing
- Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
- Trade Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
- Cash and Cash Equivalents

0.00%

42 221 431
31 160 517
11 059 919
995

42 221 431
31 160 517
11 059 919
995

-

-

-

-

Variable Interest Rate Instruments
- Investment Deposits
- Bank Account

3.50%

95 128 930
56 628 095
38 500 835

95 128 930
56 628 095
38 500 835

-

-

-

-

137 350 361

137 350 361

-

-

-

-

27.8 Other Price Risks

The college is not exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments as the college does not trade these investments.
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All Related Party Transactions are conducted at arm's length, unless stated otherwise.
28.1 Interest of Related Parties
Entities with whom the College has a relationship:
Controlling Entity:

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

Entities under Common Control:

All Sectorial Education and Training Authorities (SETA's)
National Skills Fund (NSF)
National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)
Other colleges

Other:

Members of key management
Close family member of key management

Councillors and/or management of the college had relationships with businesses during the financial period as indicated below:
Name of Related Person
Minister
Mr B Nizimandi
Professor Hlengiwe Mkhize
Ms Naledi Pandor

Designation

Description of Related Party Relationship

Minister
Minister
Minister

Higher Education and Training
Higher Education and Training
Higher Education and Training

Management
L Mbulawa
ND Dapula
R Van Dyk
A Swartbooi
N Miggel

Designation
Principal and Council Member
Deputy Principal: Academic and Council Member
Deputy Principal: Innovation & Development
(Acting) Deputy Principal Corporate Services
Deputy Principal: Finance

Notes on Key Management positions:
L Mbulawa acted as Principal whilst holding the position of Deputy Principal: Corporate Services from 1 January 2018 until 31 August 2019
when he was appointed as Principal.
N Miggel was acting Deputy Principal: Finance for the period 1 January 2018 until 30 April 2019 when she was appointed as Deputy Principal:
Finance.
A Swartbooi has been acting Deputy Principal Corporate Services from 1 January 2018 and was still acting in the position as at 31 December
2019.
ND Dapula, Deputy Principal: Academic, and R Van Dyk, Deputy Principal: Innovation & Development, has been employed in their positions
prior to 1 January 2018.
Council
Outgoing Council active until 31 March 2019
Prof A Redlinghuis - Chairperson
Ms Z Zantsi - Vice Chairperson
Ms E du Plessis
Ms J Stoffels
Dr K Jacobs
Mr H Kok
Mr C Maans
Prof F Sonn
Mr K Nangle
Mr P Nkuzo
Mr T Obdrabu
Mr L Mbulawa

Chairperson
Vice Chairperson

New Council
Ms B Mtini
Mr D Fredericks
Prof M Ralarala
Dr N Nduna
Prof E Ruhode
Prof J Kioko
Ms N Tyandela
Adv M Mdludlu
Mr H Kok
Mr T Mkhwanazi
Mr A Tshona
Ms N Dapula
Mr L Mbulawa
Mr A Tshona
Mr M Matya
Mr M Ndinwa (SRC)
Ms S Feni (SRC)
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2018
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Tuition and Other
Revenue
R

Outstanding
Balances
R

28.2 Income Received from Related Parties
During the year the income was received from the following Related Parties that are related to the college as indicated:
Government
Grants
R
For the Year ended 31 December 2019
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)
National Skills Fund (NSF)
Department of Rural Development and Land
Department of Economic Development and Tourism
Western Cape Education Department
Department of Labour
NSFAS Debtor
AGRISETA
CAPENATURE
CATHSSETA
CETA
CHIETA
ETDP SETA
EWSETA
FP&M SETA
INSETA
MERSETA
TETA
W&R Seta
Services Seta
Community Colleges (CLC)
Boland College
Northlink College

202 865 167
4 063 883
-

7 271 099
10 972 146
604 847
6 654 432
1 199 386

-

825 000
636 786
167 400
520 104
627 089
627 246
134 233
12 600
2 725 000
896 827

-

5 160
6 525
78 750

Total Income

206 929 050

33 964 630

Government
Grants
R

Tuition and Other
Revenue
R

1 881 846
(1 584 612)
43 000
(63 705)
3 819 392
206 517
4 458 430
(47 521)
15 649
565 800
2 209 435
(200 482)
289 541
(666 866)
(818 473)
250 000
50
19 439
19 290
10 396 729
Outstanding
Balances
R

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)
National Skills Fund (NSF)
National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)
Department of Rural Development and Land
Department of Economic Development and Tourism
Western Cape Education Department
Department of Labour
AGRISETA
CAPENATURE
CATHSSETA
CETA
CHIETA
ETDP SETA
EWSETA
FP&M SETA
INSETA
MERSETA
TETA
W&R Seta
Community Colleges (CLC)
College of Cape Town
Falsebay College
Boland College

162 419 087
790 523
-

8 621 493
8 884 540
474 676
6 720 224
820 800
375 000
86 000
54 000
671 950
1 040 946
210 000
333 168
1 154 738
916 000
79 770
15 939
15 939
14 177

11 035 970
(1 572 076)
(9 162 124)
173 012
(425 656)
47 623
40 000
(0)
255 100
(665 696)
(107 929)
604 856
(1 084 760)
188 875
-

Total Income

163 209 610

30 489 358

(672 805)

Balances are reported on a net basis in order to show the combined effect of outstanding balances. The balances may not necessarily be offset contractually.
The only expenses from related parties are the impairments raised on Stipend Debtors.
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28.3 Compensation of Related Parties
December 2019
Compensation of Key Management Personnel
N Miggel (inclusive of acting in the Position)
ND Dapula
R van Dyk
L Mbulawa
A Swartbooi (inclusive of acting in the Position)

Basic
562 745
652 284
729 432
678 845
438 810
3 062 116

Bonus
50 692
55 037
117 006
111 241
36 735
370 711

Allowances and
Contributions
182 652
151 722
177 456
319 640
97 915
929 386

Termination Benefit
-

Total
796 089
859 044
1 023 894
1 109 726
573 460
4 362 213

Basic
8 143
699 463
778 676
701 524
2 187 806

Bonus
140 724
52 317
67 950
62 203
323 193

Allowances and
Contributions
7 257
63 412
61 825
158 550
291 044

Termination Benefit
263 400
263 400

Total
419 523
815 191
908 451
922 277
3 065 442

December 2018
Compensation of Key Management Personnel
OT Jooste-Mokgethi (Employed until December 2017)
ND Dapula
R Van Dyk
L Mbulawa

2019

Compensation of Council
Outgoing Council (active until 31 March 2019)
Prof A Redlinghuis - Chairperson
Ms Z Zantsi - Vice Chairperson
Ms E du Plessis
Ms J Stoffels
Dr K Jacobs
Mr C Maans
Mr H Kok
Prof F Sonn
New Council
Ms B Mtini - Chairperson
Mr D Fredericks - Vice Chairperson
Prof M Ralarala
Dr N Nduna
Prof E Ruhode
Prof J Kioko
Ms N Tyandela
Adv M Mdludlu
Mr H Kok
Mr T Mkhwanazi

2018

19 878
30 501
15 308
8 039
4 804
22 254
11 274
-

117 269
129 089
93 875
25 720
95 579
47 609
61 682
33 725

17 340
13 775
14 084
15 395
9 961
9 461
14 573
8 187
11 109
-

-

225 943

604 548

7 544 648

7 524 648

-

40 000

-

325 632

(iv) Lulu Nongogo:
Nature of claim: Breach of Contract. The applicant terminated her mandate with her attorney. Further action is
uncertain. This matter might go to trial.

-

215 415

(v) MMR Finansiele Dienste:
Nature of claim: Breach of Contract. This matter might be settled between the parties.

-

154 304

(vi) Provision of Legal Services:
Nature of claim: The College disputed Allom Attorneys’ claim that the law firm could withhold monies in the Attorney
firm’s trust account in lieu of unpaid invoices owed to the company. Further the College was of the opinion that the
College was entitled to compounded interest on the monies in the attorney firm’s trust account. This claim was refuted
by the attorney firm. The college can confirm that this matter is settled.

150 000

9 000

(vii)

150 000

-

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(i) Glowing Sunset Trading 38 CC:
The Plaintiff, Glowing Sunset Trading 38 cc, was awarded the contract for the building of the Hospitality Building at the
Defendants Malmesbury Campus as well as the construction of 6 additional classrooms at the Defendant’s Vredenburg
Campus. The Plaintiff could not meet the agreed deadlines and after numerous meetings and interventions with the
Plaintiff, the defendant opted to terminate the contract with the Plaintiff. This matter might be placed on the relevant
court-roll for adjudication by a presiding judge.
We have received a summons and the matter is opposed by the college.
(ii) Legal Opinion Sort:
The Applicant (West Coast College) approached its appointed legal council for an opinion regarding allegations of
alleged misconduct against the Respondent (Ms. Sonja Botha), a Senior Ethics Officer. The allegations investigated
relates to possible undermining of Authority and possible instigation.
Matter was resolved internally
(iii) Neil Rodrigues:
The applicant's (Neil Rodrigues) legal council is yet to provide the Respondent's (West Coast College) legal council
with their Index. The matter is not being pursued.
This matter is not concluded but the probability is small for litigation

Tender Dispute with Securitem (Pty) Ltd:
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Nature of claim: The Plaintiff in this matter disputed the West Coast TVET College’s tender process and claimed that
Securitem was unduly prejudiced during the awarding of the tender. This claim was of a frivolous nature and no
substantial evidence was produced to support the plaintiff’s claim. The College informed the Plaintiff that the security
tender was awarded to another service provider.
(viii) Claim for Damages by ERM Steenkamp:
Nature of claim: The Plaintiff and the Defendant were parties in a lease agreement that mutually terminated when the
aforementioned lease agreement matured. The Plaintiff thereafter claimed that the students that were occupied at the
leased premises, Grassmere, vandalised the Plaintiff’s property. The Defendant submitted a claim of R 846 900 for the
purported damages and losses suffered as a result of the aforementioned damages to the Plaintiff’s property.

1 096 900

(ix) Claim for Damages by CE van Staden:
Nature of claim: During a fire at the Defendant’s Vredendal Campus Residence, the Plaintiff, a student of the
Defendant at the time, claimed that he suffered burns during their evacuation. The Plaintiff held that the Defendant
was negligent in its actions and claimed for medical and personal suffering and expenses.

498 000

-

(x) Labour Dispute by G Forbes:
Nature of claim: Mr Forbes raised a grievance relating to two issues. First matter pertains to the fact that the college
did not appoint him as the Quality manager. Secondly, he wants to be compensated for the work done in the absence
of a Quality manager. The matter was heard by a commissioner and it was agreed that the college could explain and
was within their powers to not offer the position of acting Quality manager. Secondly, the college is in agreement that
Mr Forbes should receive a token of appreciation for the work done, on top of promoting him to a higher salary level.
The College is now at the point of establishing the value of the token of appreciation. There is a possibility that Mr
Forbes might resubmit the matter to the bargaining council for mediation if no amount can be agreed on.

149 586

-

(xi) Labour Dispute by Mr Mahoney:
Nature of claim: Mr Mahoney was dismissed during June 2019 but then appealed the outcome. The appeal outcome
upheld the dismissal effective September 2019. Mr Mahoney then referred the matter to the bargaining council for
arbitration. The matter only started in March 2020 at the bargaining council. We anticipate that the case will only
conclude in the last quarter of 2020.

188 000

-

30 IN-KIND DONATIONS AND ASSISTANCE
Apart from the Persal funding received from the Department during the year under review, various related parties provided training to the college at no cost (other
than the travel to and from the venue). The institutions include the Department of Higher Education, National Student Financial Aid Scheme, Boland College and
various other college forums. The approximate cost for each training intervention could not be determined due to the fact the numerous colleges received the
same benefit and that the costs were not made available to the attending institutions.

31 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
South Africa is facing unprecedented health and economic challenges as a result of the negative impact of the COVID-19 which was declared a global pandemic
by the World Health Organization ( WHO) around February 2020. President Cyril Ramaphosa issued a directive that, inter alia, declared South Africa a National
State of Disaster, in terms of the Disaster Management Act, 57 of 2002. The country was thus placed under total lockdown effective mid-night of 26 March 2020
for an initial 21 days expiring on 16 April 2020, causing devastating economic consequences. The state of health of many South Africans and the economy at
large have been at the receiving end of this pandemic and many lives lost. Extension of the lockdown period has since been made in phases, intended to
gradually normalise society in due course. The impact of these events, which arose after the reporting date, will be far reaching.

The college was unable to reasonably determine the extent of the expected loss this pandemic may cause. Management has, however, found it necessary to
bring this matter to the attention of all users of these financial statements. It is not envisaged that these events will impact the assumption of going concern.

32 GOING CONCERN ASSESSMENT
Management considered the following matters relating to the Going Concern:
(i)

The Council adopted the 2019 Budget. This is sufficient to support the ongoing delivery of educational services to students.

(ii) DHET's grant allocation is expected to increase based on the increased FTE's being registered and therefore sufficient funding would be available for the
following year.
(iii)
Strict daily cash management processes are embedded in the college’s operations to manage and monitor all actual cash inflows and cash outflows in
terms of the cash-flow forecast supporting the Budget. The cash management processes is complemented by monthly and quarterly reporting, highlighting the
actual cash position, including the associated risks and remedial actions to be instituted.
Taking the aforementioned into account, management has prepared the Annual Financial Statements on the Going Concern Basis.
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SUPPLIMENTARY SCHEDULE TO THE 2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RELATING TO THE CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCY GRANT (CIEG) BY
WEST COAST TVET COLLEGE

2019

DISCLOSURE ITEMS
CIEG bank balance brought forward at 01/01/2019
Total CIEG Grant funding received from the Department of
Higher Education and Training
Plus: Interest received on the CIEG dedicated bank account
= Total CIEG funding received
Less: Bank charges / finance charges
Less: Expenditure paid in terms of approved work package
approvals issued by the Department of Higher Education and
Training
= Total CIEG funds per dedicated CIEG bank account
Less: Committed expenditure not yet paid in terms approved
work package approvals issued by the Department of Higher
Education and Training
= Total AVAILABLE CIEG GRANT funding
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R
17 508 838.80

2018
R

0

17 085 875.00

17 745 000.00

1 585 568.43

161 942.95

36 180 264.23
0

17 906 942.95
0

7 907 865.90

398 104.15

28 272 398.33

17 508 838.80

6 927 079.91

10 743 281.58

21 345 318.42

6 765 556.95
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